
 

 

 
 
 
 

PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Date: April 16, 2025   
Time: 12:00 PM 
Location: 1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 310 Fresno, CA 93721 
 

AGENDA 
ITEM SUBJECT PRESENTER ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER Pacheco, Chair  

2. 
Page 2 

ROLL CALL 
A. Monthly Attendance Record 

  

3. 
Page 3 

MARCH 12, 2025, PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION 
COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  Pacheco, Chair Approve 

4. 
Page 8 

LOCAL CONSERVATION CORPS: LOCAL CONSERVATION 
CORPS CALRECYCLE RCL 40 GRANT Riggins, Staff Approve 

5. 
Page 10 

2026-2027 COMMUNITY ACTION PLAN PROCESS 
A. Supporting Document Arredondo, Staff Approve  

6. 
Page 212 WOMEN, INFANTS & CHILDREN: WIC FUNDING AWARD Thornton, Staff  Accept  

7. 
Page 214 

PROGRAM PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT: FUNDING 
PROPOSALS FOR AMOUNTS UNDER $150,000 Medina, Staff Approve 

8. 
Page 215 

PROGRAM PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT: FUNDING 
PROPOSALS FOR AMOUNTS UNDER $150,000 Medina, Staff Ratify 

9. 
Page 216 

SANCTUARY AND SUPPORT SERVICES: FRESNO COUNTY 
HUMAN TRAFFICKING SUPPORT SERVICES GRANT Gattie-Blanco Ratify  

10. 
Page 218 

SANCTUARY AND SUPPORT SERVICES: HOUSING AND 
HOMELESSNESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM  Gattie-Blanco Ratify  

11. 
Page 220 FOOD SERVICES: CHICK-FIL-A TRUE INSPIRATIONS AWARDS Escobar, Staff  Information  

12.  
Page 221  

TRAINING & EMPLOYMENT SERVICES: URBAN EAST YOUTH 
SERVICES MONITORING 
A. Supporting Document 

Turner, Staff Information  

13.  
Page 228 

GRANT TRACKER  
A. Supporting Document Medina, Staff Information 

14. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Board on any matter related to the Commission 
that is not listed on the agenda.  Limit two minutes per speaker.) 

15. ADJOURNMENT  

Note: NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING: Wednesday, May 14, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. at the Fresno EOC Board 
Room.  

 



January Feb 12-Mar 16-Apr 14-May 11-Jun 9-Jul Aug 10-Sep 8-Oct 12-Nov 10-Dec Attended
Alena Pacheco O 1/9
Brian King O 1/9
Diane Lira O 1/9
Robert Pimentel X 0/9
Jalyssa Jenkins-McGill T 1/9

O-Present X-Absent T-Teleconference

Program Planning and Evaluation Committee Meeting 
Monthly Attendance Record                                                   

2025

Page 2 of 233



 

 

 
 
 
 

PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Date: March 12, 2025   
Time: 12:00 PM 
Location: 1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 310 Fresno, CA 93721 
 

MINUTES 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Alena Pacheco, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m.  
 

2. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Roll was called and a quorum was established. 
 

 Committee Members:  
Alena Pacheco 
Brian King 
Diane Lira  
 
Teleconference:  
Jalyssa Jenkins-McGill 
 
Absent:  
Robert Pimentel  
 

Staff:  
Brian Angus  
Sherry Neil  
Jack Lazzarini 
Nelson Dibie 
Greg Streets  
Ana Medina 
Jane Thomas 
Julio Romero  
Patrick Turner 
Misty Gattie-Blanco 
Elisa Sgambellone 
 

Thomas Dulin 
Jon Escobar  
Princess Kosinski 
Andy Arredondo 
Gilda Arreguin 
Latisha Conway 
Angela Riofrio 
Augie Quiroz 
Stephanie Buelna 
Elionora Vivanco  

3. 
 

2025 PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
Committee Chair Pacheco provided an overview of the proposed 2025 Program Planning and 
Evaluation (PP&E) Committee Meeting schedule. The Committee has motioned for the PP&E 
Committee meeting to meet on the third Wednesday of the month at 12 noon.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Lira Second by: Pacheco  
Ayes: All in favor 
Nays: None 
 

4. 
 

PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE CHARTER 
 

Page 3 of 233



 

 

Brian Angus, Interim Chief Executive Officer, provided an overview of the redline recommendation 
changes to the PP&E Committee charter. Angus stated he would revisit the charter and make 
necessary changes once the agency is back on track.   
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Pacheco Second by: King 
Ayes: All in favor 
Nays: None 
 

5. 
 

CALIFORNIA ADVANCING AND INNOVATING MEDI-CAL (CalAIM) INITIATIVES  
 
Jane Thomas, Health Services Director, provided a detailed overview of entering into multiple 
contracts with Anthem Blue Cross and CalViva, as well as submitting a Providing Access and 
Transforming (PATH) Capacity and Infrastructure Transition, Expansion, and Development (CITED)  
grant application in the amount of $1,852,741 to become a CalAIM provider. Thomas stated this 
grant is a collaboration with Sanctuary Support Services and Food Services.  
 
Thomas, Misty Gattie-Blanco, Sanctuary Director, and Jon Escobar, Food Services Director, 
provided a presentation of the goals and impact of the potential contracts to provide Community 
Health Worker (CHW), Community Supports (CS), Enhanced Care Management (ECM) services and 
PATH CITED, to enhance health outcomes, improve service delivery, and expand access to care for 
our communities.  
 
Chair Pacheco, inquired for clarification to understand what is being asked for the Board to approve 
at the next Board Meeting.  Brian Angus, Interim Chief Executive Officer, stated the Board is 
approving the post to ensure we are meeting grants deadlines. Ana Medina, Program Planning & 
Development Director, stated the Program Director is asking for the Board to approve CHW, CS, 
and ECM to become a provider and negotiate the rates with the health plans, and to submit the 
PATH CITED grant.  
 
Chair Pacheco and the Commission, inquired about the possibility of adding a description of “Other 
Cost” to the budget and updating the staff reports for the full board consideration. Angus stated,  
moving forward a footnote will be added with a description for “Other Cost” on the budget.  
 
The Committee and staff engaged in further discussion and recommended this item move forward 
as presented.   
  
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Pacheco Second by: King 
Ayes: All in favor 
Nays: None 
 

Page 4 of 233



 

 

6. 
 

CONTINUATION APPLICATIONS  
 
Thomas, provided a brief overview of the following two continuation applications to allow Health 
Services to continue operating the CA PREP and I&E Program in addition to the FUSD 
Comprehensive Sexual Health Education Program.  
 

1. California Personal Responsibility Education Program (CA Prep) and Information & 
Education (I&E) Program   

2. FUSD Comprehensive Sexual Health Education Program  
 
Chair Pacheco asked when renewing these contracts, we do it because it’s good for the agency's 
financials. Thomas stated yes, these contracts are great services to provide for the community 
and bring profit to the agency.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Lira Second by: Pacheco  
Ayes: All in favor 
Nays: None 
 

7. 
 

ENERGY SERVICES: EQUITABLE BUILDING DECARBONIZATION DIRECT INSTALL PROGRAM – 
CENTRAL REGION   
 
Latisha Conway, Weatherization Director, provided an overview of the subaward agreement in the 
amount of $565,676 with the Center for Sustainable Energy and California Energy Commission.   
 
Chair Pacheco inquired if we are required to advertise in the central area of town or does it 
depend on the zip code. Conway stated is based on the disadvantaged community in the Fresno 
County area.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: King Second by: Lira 
Ayes: All in favor 
Nays: None 
 

8. 
 

ADVANCE PEACE COMPREHENSIVE MONITORING VISIT 
 

Patrick Turner, Training & Employment Services Director, provided an overview of the 2024 State 
of California Bureau of State and Community Corrections onsite monitoring visit. Turner stated 
the monitoring visit demonstrated that the agency is in compliance with federal and state laws 
with no findings and that the agency met the requirements and is eligible to apply for the 
California Violence Intervention and Prevention (CalVIP) Cohort 5 grant.  
 
Chair Pacheco asked if the state discussed any issues or questions regarding the process with 
Dr. Alfonzo Tucker's contract. Turner stated no issues or questions from the state.  
 

Page 5 of 233



 

 

Public Comments: None heard.  
 
No action required. 
 

9. 
 

ADVANCE PEACE CALIFORNIA VIOLENCE INTERVENTION AND PREVENTION GRANT PROGRAM - 
COHORT 5 
 
Turner, stated Advance Peace intends to submit a Non-binding Letter of Intent and apply for the 
CalVIP Cohort 5 grant in an amount up to $5,000,000 for a three-year period. If funded, these 
funds will transform lives and build healthier, safer, and more equitable communities.   
 
Angus, stated holding monthly Committee meetings helps keep the Board informed of upcoming 
grants, as this information item will be brought back to the committee for approval or ratification 
in the next few months.  
 
Public Comments: None heard.  
 
No action required. 
 

10. 
 

2024 CSBG MONITORING REPORT UPDATE  
 
Andy Arredondo, Evaluation Director, provided an overview of the 2025 Community Services 
Block Grant onsite monitoring visit. Arredondo stated the monitoring report C-24-015 had one 
finding about untimely contract execution and deliverable submission but that the findings have 
been resolved and closed. 
 
Chair Pacheco asked when the 2025 CSBG grant was submitted. Arredondo responded that the 
full Board approved the 2025 CSBG grant at the January 13, 2025, Board meeting and was 
submitted by January 17, 2025.  
 
Public Comments: None heard.  
 
No action required. 
 

11. 
 

2026 -2027 COMMUNITY ACTION PLAN PROCESS   
 
Arredondo, provided an overview on the Community Action Plan and timeline, to be in compliance 
with the State of California Department of Community Services and Development.  
 
Public Comments: None heard.  
 
No action required. 
 

12.  
 

GRANT TRACKER  
 
Ana Medina, Program Planning & Development Director, provided an update on the Grant Tracker 
for the month of January 27, 2025.  

Page 6 of 233



 

 

Public Comments: None heard.  
 
No action required. 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Misty Gattie-Blanco, Sanctuary Director, shared with the Commission the National Safe Place 
taking place the week of March 16-22, 2025, and provided a flyer with additional details.  
 
Chair Pacheco, inquired about an update on the article about Head Start 0 to 5 closing in rural 
areas due to under-enrollment. Angus stated that under-enrollment is a California state issue 
with serving 3 and 4 year olds due to competing with schools. 
 
Commissioner Lira, stated we need to take into consideration that some of the schools are not 
built to meet the high demand of housing these children.  
 
Angus inquired about the possibility of the Fresno County Superintended Dr. Michele Cantwell-
Copher leading a meeting between Fresno EOC and Golden Plain Unified School District. 
Commissioner Lira invited Angus to attend the Fresno County Board of Education meeting for 
further discussion.  
 
Public Comments: None heard.  
 
No action required. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting adjourned at 1:10 p.m. 

 

Page 7 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

 
Date: April 16, 2025  Program: Local Conservation Corps 

Agenda Item #: 4 Director:  Shawn Riggins 

Subject: Local Conservation Corps 
CalRecycle RCL 40 Grant 

Officer: Sherry Neil  

 

Recommended Action 

Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee approval for full Board consideration of the 
Local Conservation Corps (LCC) CalRecycle RCL 40 grant application to CalRecycle in the amount of 
$2,282,789 over a 24-year project period from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2027.  

Background 

This grant will continue CalRecycle’s efforts to include all 14 California Local Certified Community 
Conservation Corps in the collection and education activities of four (4) material types: CRV 
Beverage Containers, Used Oil, Used Tires, and E-waste. LCC maintains partnerships with the cities 
and counties of Fresno and Madera by collaborating on used tire and e-waste Amnesty days. LCC 
will collect CRV beverage containers from schools, bars/restaurants and special events. LCC will 
also visit used oil Certified Collection Centers throughout the county to ensure state mandated 
signage is posted and accurate, in addition to collecting e-waste from businesses and residential 
homes. LCC continues to operate a Buyback/Recycling Center in the rural community of Friant, 
which redeems bottles and cans from the public for cash and accepts used tires and e-waste, in 
addition to exploring a potential second buyback site.  

Per state statue, the CalRecycle grant is the program that enables youth serving programs to be 
considered an official “Corps” and provides funding for various LCC staff. The Buyback component 
helps provide funding for many corps needs, not usually included in grant budgets.  
 
The short- and long-term goals for this project include providing opportunities for local residents to 
help divert recyclable materials from local landfills, while also providing vocational training 
opportunities for young adults, ages 18-26.   
 
The grant application is due on April 17, 2025.  
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 233



 

 

Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will support 30 corpsmember positions, seven (7) Crew Supervisors, a Program 
Assistant, an Outreach and Recruitment staff member, a Transitional Support Advisor (TSA) and a 
Program Manager as well as provide partial funding for additional LCC staff members, including the 
LCC Director, LCC Assistant Director, LCC Operations, Administration Manager, and a Facilities and 
Safety Coordinator. No match required.  

Budget will be provided during the meeting.  

  
 

 

Page 9 of 233



 

 

 
 

PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

 
Date: April 16, 2025 Program: N/A 

Agenda Item #: 5 Director: Andy Arredondo 

Subject: 2026-2027 Community Action 
Plan Process 

Officer: Brian Angus 

 
Recommended Action 

Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee approval for full Board consideration of 
Fresno EOC’s 2026-2027 Community Action Plan (CAP), to be submitted to the Department of 
Community Services and Development (CSD) by May 31, 2025.  

Background 

The State of California Department of Community Services and Development (CSD) designates 
eligible entities as Community Action Agencies as part of their state plan to the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services (HHS). To be considered an eligible entity, Fresno EOC is required to 
meet the California code, Government Code - GOV § 12747 (a), “Community action plans shall be 
developed by eligible entities…”. Meeting this eligibility requirement also complies with 
Organizational Standards 1.1, 1.2, 2.1, 2.2, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, and 6.4. To meet 
the CAP requirements and deadline, staff have implemented the following timeline: 

• Feb 28, 2025 – Publicly posted draft CAP (must be 30 days prior to the CAP public hearing) 

• March 20, 2025 – Posted public hearing information (location, time, etc.) (must be at least ten 

days prior to the public hearing) 

• April 1, 2025 – Conducted CAP public hearing and incorporated community testimony 

• April 16, 2025 – Present final draft CAP to Program Planning & Evaluation Committee 

• April 21, 2025 – Board approval of CAP 

A prerequisite to the CAP is completing a Community Needs Assessment (CNA) which was 
presented and accepted by the board on May 20, 2024, agenda item number ten (10).  
 
Fiscal Impact 

Submission of the Board approved 2026-2027 CAP will ensure Fresno EOC meets compliance with 
the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Act and continues to receive CSBG funding. 

Page 10 of 233



1 | P a g e  

 

 

2026/2027 
Community Needs Assessment and 

Community Action Plan 

 
Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
Template Revised - 02/13/2025

Page 11 of 233



2 | P a g e  

 

 

Contents 
Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Purpose ............................................................................................................................................................. 3 
Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances and Certification ............................................................................... 3 
State Assurances and Certification .................................................................................................................... 3 
Compliance with CSBG Organizational Standards ............................................................................................. 4 
What’s New for 2026/2027? ............................................................................................................................... 4 

Checklist ................................................................................................................................................................ 5 
Cover Page ........................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Public Hearing(s) ................................................................................................................................................... 7 
Part I: Community Needs Assessment Summary .................................................................................................. 9 

Narrative .......................................................................................................................................................... 11 
Results ............................................................................................................................................................. 17 

Part II: Community Action Plan ............................................................................................................................ 20 
Vision and Mission Statements ........................................................................................................................ 20 
Causes and Conditions of Poverty ................................................................................................................... 21 
Tripartite Board of Directors ............................................................................................................................. 27 
Service Delivery System .................................................................................................................................. 29 
Linkages and Funding Coordination ................................................................................................................. 31 
Monitoring ........................................................................................................................................................ 48 
ROMA Application ............................................................................................................................................ 49 
Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances ....................................................................................................... 53 
State Assurances ............................................................................................................................................. 56 
Organizational Standards ................................................................................................................................. 57 

Part III: Appendices ............................................................................................................................................. 59 

 

Page 12 of 233



3 | P a g e  

 

 

Introduction 
The Department of Community Services and Development (CSD) has developed the 2026/2027 
Community Needs Assessment (CNA) and Community Action Plan (CAP) template for the Community 
Services Block Grant (CSBG) Service Providers network. CSD requests agencies submit a completed 
CAP, including a CNA, to CSD on or before June 30, 2025. Changes from the previous template are 
detailed below in the “What’s New for 2026/2027?” section. Provide all narrative responses in 12-point 
Arial font with 1.15 spacing. A completed CAP template should not exceed 65 pages, excluding the 
appendices. 

 

Purpose 
Public Law 105-285 (the CSBG Act) and the California Government Code require that CSD secure a 
CAP, including a CNA from each agency. Section 676(b)(11) of the CSBG Act directs that receipt of a 
CAP is a condition to receive funding. Section 12747(a) of the California Government Code requires 
the CAP to assess poverty-related needs, available resources, feasible goals, and strategies that yield 
program priorities consistent with standards of effectiveness established for the program. Although 
CSD may prescribe statewide priorities or strategies that shall be considered and addressed at the 
local level, each agency is authorized to set its own program priorities in conformance to its 
determination of local needs. The CAP supported by the CNA is a two-year plan that shows how 
agencies will deliver CSBG services. CSBG funds are by their nature designed to be flexible. They 
shall be used to support activities that increase the capacity of low-income families and individuals to 
become self-sufficient. 

 

Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances and Certification 
The Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances are found in Section 676(b) of the CSBG Act. These 
assurances are an integral part of the information included in the CSBG State Plan. A list of the 
assurances that are applicable to CSBG agencies has been provided in the Federal Programmatic 
Assurances section of this template. CSBG agencies should review these assurances and confirm that 
they are in compliance. Signature of the board chair and executive director on the Cover Page certify 
compliance with the Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances. 

 

State Assurances and Certification 
As required by the CSBG Act, states are required to submit a State Plan as a condition to receive 
funding. Information provided in agencies’ CAPs will be included in the CSBG State Plan. Alongside 
Organizational Standards, the state will be reporting on State Accountability Measures in order to 
ensure accountability and program performance improvement. A list of the applicable State 
Assurances is provided in this template. CSBG agencies should review these assurances and confirm 
that they are in compliance. Signature of the board chair and executive director on the Cover Page 
certify compliance with the State Assurances. 

 

Page 13 of 233

https://www.acf.hhs.gov/ocs/policy-guidance/csbg-dcl-state-and-federal-accountability-measures


4 | P a g e  

 

 

Compliance with CSBG Organizational Standards 
As described in the Office of Community Services (OCS) Information Memorandum (IM) #138 dated 
January 26, 2015, CSBG agencies will comply with the Organizational Standards. A list of 
Organizational Standards that are met by an accepted CAP, including a CNA, are found in the 
Organizational Standards section of this template. Agencies are encouraged to utilize this list as a 
resource when reporting on the Organizational Standards annually. 
 
What’s New for 2026/2027? 
Due Date. The due date for your agency’s 2026/2027 CAP is June 30, 2025. However, earlier 
submission of the CSBG Network’s CAPs will allow CSD more time to review and incorporate 
agency information in the CSBG State Plan and Application. CSD, therefore, requests that agencies 
submit their CAPs on or before May 31, 2025.      

ROMA Certification Requirement. CSD requires that agencies have the capacity to provide their 
own ROMA, or comparable system, certification for your agency’s 2026/2027 CAP. Certification can 
be provided by agency staff who have the required training or in partnership with a consultant or 
another agency. 

Federal CSBG Programmatic and State Assurances Certification. In previous templates, the 
federal and state assurances were certified by signature on the Cover Page and by checking the 
box(es) in both federal and state assurances sections. In the 2026/2027 template, CSD has clarified 
the language above the signature block on the Cover Page and done away with the check boxes. 
Board chairs and executive directors will certify compliance with the assurances by signature only. 
However, the Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances and the State Assurances language remain 
part of the 2026/2027 template.  

Other Modifications. The title page of the template has been modified to include your agency’s 
name and logo. Please use this space to brand your agency’s CAP accordingly. CSD has also added 
references to the phases of the ROMA Cycle i.e. assessment, planning, implementation, achievement 
of results, and evaluation throughout the 2026/2027 template. Additionally, there are a few new 
questions, minor changes to old questions, and a reordering of some questions. 

Page 14 of 233

https://www.acf.hhs.gov/ocs/policy-guidance/csbg-im-138-state-establishment-organizational-standards-csbg-eligible-entities
http://www.acf.hhs.gov/ocs/resource/csbg-im-138-state-establishment-of-organizational-standards-for-csbg-eligible-entities


5 | P a g e  

 

 

Checklist 

 
☒ Cover Page 
☒ Public Hearing Report 
 
Part I: Community Needs Assessment Summary 
☒ Narrative 
☒ Results 
 
Part II: Community Action Plan 
☒ Vision and Mission Statements 
☒ Causes and Conditions of Poverty 
☒ Tripartite Board of Directors 
☒ Service Delivery System 
☒ Linkages and Funding Coordination 
☒ Monitoring 
☒ ROMA Application 
☒ Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances 
☒ State Assurances 
☒ Organizational Standards 
 
Part III: Appendices 
☒ Notice of Public Hearing  
☒ Low-Income Testimony and Agency’s Response 
☒ Community Needs Assessment 

Page 15 of 233



6 | P a g e  

 

 

Cover Page 
 

Agency Name: Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 
Name of CAP Contact: Andy Arredondo 
Title: Evaluation Director 
Phone: 559-263-1057 
Email: andy.arredondo@fresnoeoc.org 

 
Date Most Recent  
CNA was Completed:  
(Organizational Standard 3.1) 

May 20, 2024 

 
Board and Agency Certification 

The undersigned hereby certifies that this agency will comply with the Federal CSBG Programmatic 
Assurances (CSBG Act Section 676(b)) and California State Assurances (Government Code Sections 12747(a), 
12760, and 12768) for services and programs provided under the 2026/2027 Community Needs Assessment 
and Community Action Plan. The undersigned governing body accepts the completed Community Needs 
Assessment. (Organizational Standard 3.5) 

 
 

Name:  Brian Angus Name:  Oliver Baines 

Title:  Interim Chief Executive Officer Title:  Board Chair 

Date:   Date:  
 

ROMA Certification 
The undersigned hereby certifies that this agency’s Community Action Plan and strategic plan document the 
continuous use of the Results Oriented Management and Accountability (ROMA) system or comparable 
system (assessment, planning, implementation, achievement of results, and evaluation). (CSBG Act 
676(b)(12), Organizational Standard 4.3) 

 

Name: Andy Arredondo 

ROMA Title:  NCRI 

Date:  May 22, 2024 

CSD Use Only 

Dates CAP 

Accepted By Received Accepted 
   

Page 16 of 233



7 | P a g e  

 

 

Public Hearing(s) 
California Government Code Section 12747(b)-(d) 

 
State Statute Requirements 

As required by California Government Code Section 12747(b)-(d), agencies are required to conduct a 
public hearing for the purpose of reviewing the draft CAP. Testimony presented by low-income 
individuals and families during the public hearing shall be identified in the final CAP.  

Guidelines 

Notice of Public Hearing 

1. Notice of the public hearing should be published at least 10 calendar days prior to the public 
hearing. 

2. The notice may be published on the agency’s website, social media channels, and/or in 
newspaper(s) of local distribution. 

3. The notice should include information about the draft CAP; where members of the community 
may review, or how they may receive a copy of, the draft CAP; the dates of the comment 
period; where written comments may be sent; date, time, and location of the public hearing; and 
the agency contact information. 

4. The comment period should be open for at least 10 calendar days prior to the public hearing. 
Agencies may opt to extend the comment period for a selected number of days after the 
hearing. 

5. The draft CAP should be made available for public review and inspection approximately 30 
days prior to the public hearing. The draft CAP may be posted on the agency’s website, social 
media channels, and distributed electronically or in paper format. 

6. Attach a copy of the Notice(s) of Public Hearing in Part III: Appendices as Appendix A.  

Public Hearing 

1. Agencies must conduct at least one public hearing on the draft CAP. 
2. Public hearing(s) must be held in the designated CSBG service area(s). 
3. Low-income testimony presented at the hearing or received during the comment period should 

be memorialized verbatim in the Low-Income Testimony and Agency’s Response document 
and appended to the final CAP as Appendix B in Part III: Appendices. 

4. The Low-Income Testimony and Agency’s Response document should include the name of 
low-income individual, his/her testimony, an indication of whether or not the need was 
addressed in the draft CAP, and the agency’s response to the testimony if the concern was not 
addressed in the draft CAP. 

Page 17 of 233



8 | P a g e  

 

 

Additional Guidance 
For the purposes of fulfilling the public hearing requirement on the draft CAP, agencies may conduct 
the public hearing in-person, remotely, or using a hybrid model based on community need at the time 
of the hearing. 

Public Hearing Report 
 

Date(s) the Notice(s) of Public Hearing(s) 
was/were published March 20, 2025 

Date Public Comment Period opened February 28, 2025 

Date Public Comment Period closed April 2, 2025 

Date(s) of Public Hearing(s) April 1, 2025 

Location(s) of Public Hearing(s) 
Fresno EOC Franklin Head Start 
1189 Martin Ave #3631 
Fresno, CA 93706 

Where was the Notice of Public Hearing 
published? (agency website, newspaper, 
social media channels) 

Agency websites, social media 
accounts, program centers, head start 
locations 

Number of attendees at the Public 
Hearing(s) 

5 

Page 18 of 233



9 | P a g e  

 

 

Part I: Community Needs Assessment Summary 
CSBG Act Section 676(b)(11) 
California Government Code Section 12747(a) 

 
 

Helpful Resources 
A community needs assessment provides a comprehensive “picture” of the needs in your service 
area(s). Resources are available to guide agencies through this process.  

• CSD-lead training – “Community Needs Assessment: Common Pitfalls and Best Practices” 
on Tuesday, September 10, 2024, at 1:00 pm. Registration is required. The training will be 
recorded and posted on the Local Agencies Portal after the event.  

• Examples of CNAs, timelines, and other resources are on the Local Agencies Portal. 

• Community Action Guide to Comprehensive Community Needs Assessments published by 
the National Association for State Community Service Programs (NASCSP).  

• Community Needs Assessment Tool designed by the National Community Action Partnership 
(NCAP). 

• National and state quantitative data sets. See links below. 
 

Sample Data Sets 

U.S. Census Bureau 
Poverty Data 

 

U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
Economic Data 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 

Housing Data & Report 

HUD Exchange 
PIT and HIC Data Since 2007 

National Low-Income Housing 
Coalition 

Housing Needs by State 

National Center for Education 
Statistics 
IPEDS 

California 
Department of Education 
School Data via DataQuest 

California  
Employment Development 

Department 
UI Data by County 

California  
Department of Public Health  

Various Data Sets 

California  
Department of Finance 

Demographics 

California 
Attorney General 

Open Justice 

California 
Health and Human Services 

Data Portal 

CSD 
Census Tableau 
Data by County 

Population Reference Bureau 
KidsData 

Data USA 
National Public Data 

 

National Equity Atlas 
Racial and Economic Data  

Census Reporter 
Census Data 

Page 19 of 233

https://agencies.csd.ca.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://nascsp.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/needs-assessment-final-8.22-print-to-pdf.pdf
https://cap.engagementnetwork.org/assessment-tools/assessment-tool/
https://www.census.gov/topics/income-poverty/poverty.html
https://www.bls.gov/home.htm
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.html
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/3031/pit-and-hic-data-since-2007/
https://nlihc.org/housing-needs-by-state
https://nces.ed.gov/ipeds/use-the-data/survey-components
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.edd.ca.gov/about_edd/Quick_Statistics_Information_by_County.htm
https://data.chhs.ca.gov/organization/california-department-of-public-health
http://www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Demographics/
https://openjustice.doj.ca.gov/data
https://data.chhs.ca.gov/
https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/benjamin.yeager/viz/shared/Y3K9YKHZ4
https://www.kidsdata.org/
https://datausa.io/
https://nationalequityatlas.org/
https://censusreporter.org/


10 | P a g e  

 

 

Sample Data Sets 

Urban Institute 
SNAP Benefit Gap 

Race Counts 
California Racial Disparity Data 

Rent Data 
Fair Market Rent by ZIP 

UC Davis 
Center for Poverty & Inequality 

Poverty Statistics 

University of Washington 
Center for Women’s Welfare 

California Self-Sufficiency Standard 

University of Wisconsin 
Robert Wood Johnson 

Foundation 
County Health Rankings 

Massachusetts  
Institute of Technology 
Living Wage Calculator 

Nonprofit Leadership Center 
Volunteer Time Calculator 

Economic Policy Institute 
Family Budget Calculator 

Page 20 of 233

https://www.urban.org/data-tools/does-snap-cover-cost-meal-your-county
https://www.racecounts.org/state/california/
https://www.rentdata.org/lookup
https://poverty.ucdavis.edu/finding-poverty-statistics
https://selfsufficiencystandard.org/California/
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/app/california/2022/overview
https://livingwage.mit.edu/states/06/locations
https://nlctb.org/tips/value-of-volunteer-time/
https://www.epi.org/resources/budget/


11 | P a g e  

 

 

Narrative 
CSBG Act Section 676(b)(9) 
Organizational Standards 2.2, 3.3 
ROMA – Assessment 
 
Based on your agency’s most recent CNA, please respond to the questions below.  

 

1. Describe the geographic location(s) that your agency is funded to serve with CSBG. If 
applicable, include a description of the various pockets, high-need areas, or neighborhoods of 
poverty that are being served by your agency.  

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission (Fresno EOC) is funded to serve Fresno County with 
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) funds. Fresno County is located in the heart of 
California's Central Valley and is characterized by a diverse population and a rich agricultural 
heritage.  The county has over 35 different communities, including 15 incorporated cities and 25 
small, unincorporated communities.  The major cities in Fresno County include Clovis, Coalinga, 
Firebaugh, Fowler, Fresno, Huron, Kerman, Kingsburg, Mendota, Orange Cove, Parlier, Reedley, 
Sanger, San Joaquin, and Selma.  Some of the smaller unincorporated communities include 
Auberry, Biola, Cantua Creek, Caruthers, Del Rey, Highway City, Laton, Pinedale, and Riverdale.  

Geographic Overview 

Fresno County covers a vast area with a population of 1,008,280 residents.  The City of Fresno is 
the largest city in the county, with a population of 541,528.  The county's population density varies 
significantly, with urban areas like Fresno and Clovis being more densely populated compared to 
the rural areas. 

High-Need Areas and Neighborhoods of Poverty  

Fresno County faces significant challenges related to poverty and inequity.  The overall poverty 
rate in the county is 19%, with certain communities experiencing much higher rates of poverty.  The 
following sections provide a detailed description of the various pockets, high-need areas, and 
neighborhoods of poverty.  

City of Fresno  

The poverty rate in Fresno City is 22.1%, with 117,570 individuals living below the poverty line. 
Specific neighborhoods, particularly in the southwest areas, have the highest concentrations of 
poverty. These areas also have higher rates of unemployment, underemployment, and housing 
instability.  

Rural Communities 

Several rural communities experience widespread poverty and face unique challenges due to their 

Page 21 of 233



12 | P a g e  

 

 

geographic isolation and limited access to resources.  Some of the high-need rural communities 
include: 

• Huron: has a population of 6,250 and a poverty rate of 32.1%. The community faces 
significant challenges related to housing instability, food insecurity, and limited access to 
healthcare services.  

• Mendota: has a population of 12,603 and a poverty rate of 32.7%. The community has a high 
percentage of farm workers who earn low wages and often live in substandard housing 
conditions.  

• Firebaugh: has a population of 8,139 and a poverty rate of 43.3%.  The community 
experiences high rates of food insecurity and limited access to affordable housing.  

• Orange Cove: has a population of 9,635 and a poverty rate of 46.5%. The community faces 
significant challenges related to housing, food insecurity, and access to healthcare services.  

• Parlier: has a population of 14,554 and a poverty rate of 27.4%.  The community has a high 
percentage of residents who are farm workers and face challenges related to low wages and 
housing instability.  

• San Joaquin: has a population of 3,725 and a poverty rate of 33.2%. The community 
experiences high rates of food insecurity and limited access to healthcare services. 

Other High-Need Areas 

In addition to the rural communities, several other areas within Fresno County have high poverty 
rates and face significant challenges: 

• Coalinga: Coalinga has a population of 17,488 and a poverty rate of 18.7%. The community 
faces challenges related to housing instability and limited access to healthcare services.  

• Kerman: Kerman has a population of 15,980 and a poverty rate of 21.9%. The community 
experiences high rates of food insecurity and housing instability. 

• Reedley: Reedley has a population of 25,441 and a poverty rate of 15.9%. The community 
faces challenges related to housing instability and limited access to healthcare services.  

• Selma: Selma has a population of 24,318 and a poverty rate of 21.2%. The community 
experiences high rates of food insecurity and housing instability. 

 

Listed below are several of the key conditions of poverty broken down by areas of high need. 

Inadequate Housing 

Housing is a significant issue throughout Fresno County, with many homes having substandard 
conditions that contribute to health challenges, lower quality of life, and safety concerns.  According 
to the data, 42% of homes in the county have at least one substandard condition.  Housing 
instability and homelessness are also significant problems, with many residents struggling to find 

Page 22 of 233



13 | P a g e  

 

 

affordable housing due to rising costs and limited availability.  The community needs assessment 
survey respondents noted a major need for temporary housing, utility assistance, home repair 
programs, safe multi-family housing, and programs to support energy efficiency.  

General Geographic Area of High Need:  

• Southwest and Southeast Fresno City: These areas have a high concentration of substandard 
housing conditions, contributing to health challenges and safety concerns. 

• Rural Communities: Areas such as Huron, Mendota, Firebaugh, and Orange Cove have 
significant issues with housing instability and substandard living conditions. 

Food Insecurity 

Food insecurity is a prevalent issue in Fresno County, particularly in communities with the highest 
poverty rates.  Many areas in the county are considered food deserts, where residents have limited 
access to nutritious food.  Black/African American and Hispanic residents experience higher 
degrees of food insecurity compared to Whites.  Data shows that more than 50,000 people in 
Fresno County with a low-income live in areas with low access to food.  

General Geographic Area of High Need:  

• Southwest and Southeast Fresno City: These areas have several food deserts where 
residents have limited access to nutritious food.  

• Rural Communities: Areas such as Huron, Mendota, Firebaugh, and Orange Cove experience 
high levels of food insecurity.  

Unemployment and Low-Wage Jobs  

Limited job opportunities and the prevalence of low-wage jobs make it challenging for individuals to 
secure stable employment and earn sufficient income to meet their basic needs.  The 
unemployment rate in Fresno County is 9.5%, which is higher than the state and national averages. 
 There is also a significant problem of underemployment, with over 34,000 workers in the county 
being underemployed.  Income and employment disparities due to race/ethnicity further exacerbate 
the challenges faced by residents.  

General Geographic Area of High Need:  

• Southwest and Southeast Fresno City: High unemployment and underemployment rates, with 
limited job opportunities. 

• Rural Communities: Areas such as Huron, Mendota, Firebaugh, and Orange Cove have high 
rates of unemployment and low-wage jobs. 

Educational Inequities 

Educational inequities are a significant issue in Fresno County, with schools in lower-income 
neighborhoods often having fewer resources, larger class sizes, and less access to advanced 
placement courses or extracurricular activities.  This disparity impacts the educational outcomes 
and future opportunities for many children and young adults.  The school funding formula, which is 

Page 23 of 233



14 | P a g e  

 

 

dependent on property taxes, contributes to these inequities, as low-income neighborhoods receive 
less tax revenue for schools compared to more affluent areas.  

General Geographic Area of High Need:  

• Southwest and Southeast Fresno City: Schools in these areas have fewer resources and 
larger class sizes, impacting educational outcomes.  

• Rural Communities: Areas such as Huron, Mendota, Firebaugh, and Orange Cove face 
significant educational disparities.  

Limited Access to Healthcare  

Access to affordable healthcare services is a barrier for people living in poverty in Fresno County.  
The county has a limited number of healthcare providers, and transportation barriers further limit 
access to services.  Many residents rely on Medicaid, but some providers do not accept public 
insurance as payment.  Specific cohorts of the population, such as pregnant mothers, children, and 
the unemployed, are more greatly impacted by the lack of access to healthcare services.  

General Geographic Area of High Need:  

• Southwest and Southeast Fresno City: Limited number of healthcare providers and 
transportation barriers to accessing services.  

• Rural Communities: Areas such as Huron, Mendota, Firebaugh, and Orange Cove have 
significant healthcare access issues.  

Adverse Early Childhood Experiences and Family Challenges  

The rate of child abuse in Fresno County is rising, with a rate of 61.3 per 1,000 children compared 
to 43.5 per 1,000 for California.  Many children under five years old live in single-parent families or 
are unhoused, contributing to adverse early childhood experiences.  

General Geographic Area of High Need:  

• Southwest and Southeast Fresno City: High rates of child abuse and adverse early childhood 
experiences. 

• Rural Communities: Areas such as Huron, Mendota, Firebaugh, and Orange Cove face 
significant family challenges and high rates of child abuse. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 233



15 | P a g e  

 

 

2. Indicate from which sources your agency collected and analyzed quantitative data for its most 
recent CNA. (Check all that apply.) (Organizational Standard 3.3) 

Federal Government/National Data Sets 
☒Census Bureau 
☒Bureau of Labor Statistics 
☒Department of Housing & Urban 

Development 
☒Department of Health & Human 

Services 
☐National Low-Income Housing Coalition 
☐National Equity Atlas 
☒National Center for Education Statistics 
☒Academic data resources 
☒Other online data resources 
☒Other 

Local Data Sets 
☒Local crime statistics 
☒High school graduation rate 
☒School district school readiness 
☒Local employers 
☒Local labor market 
☒Childcare providers 
☒Public benefits usage 
☒County Public Health Department 
☒Other 

 

California State Data Sets 
☐Employment Development Department 
☒Department of Education 
☒Department of Public Health 
☐Attorney General 
☐Department of Finance 
☐Other 
Surveys 
☒Clients 
☒Partners and other service providers 
☒General public 
☒Staff 
☐Board members 
☒Private sector 
☒Public sector 
☐Educational Institutions 
☐Other 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agency Data Sets 
☒Client demographics 
☒Service data 
☐CSBG Annual Report 
☒Client satisfaction data 
☐Other 

 
 

Page 25 of 233



16 | P a g e  

 

 

3. Indicate the approaches your agency took to gather qualitative data for its most recent CNA. 
(Check all that apply.) (Organizational Standard 3.3) 

Surveys 
☒Clients 
☒Partners and other service providers 
☒General public 
☒Staff 
☐Board members 
☒Private sector 
☒Public sector 
☐Educational institutions 

Interviews 
☒Local leaders 
☒Elected officials 
☐Partner organizations’ leadership 
☐Board members 
☐New and potential partners 
☒Clients 

Focus Groups 
☒Local leaders 
☒Elected officials 
☐Partner organizations’ leadership 
☐Board members 
☐New and potential partners 
☒Clients 
☐Staff 

☒Community Forums 

☐Asset Mapping 

☐Other 

 

4. Confirm that your agency collected and analyzed information from each of the five community 
sectors below as part of the assessment of needs and resources in your service area(s). Your 
agency must demonstrate that all sectors were included in the needs assessment by checking 
each box below; a response for each sector is required. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(9), 
Organizational Standard 2.2) 

Community Sectors 
☒Community-based organizations 
☒Faith-based organizations 
☒Private sector (local utility companies, charitable organizations, local food banks) 
☒Public sector (social services departments, state agencies) 
☒Educational institutions (local school districts, colleges) 

Page 26 of 233



17 | P a g e  

 

 

Results  
CSBG Act Section 676(b)(11) 
California Government Code Section 12747(a) 
Organizational Standards 4.2 
State Plan Summary and Section 14.1a 
ROMA – Planning 

 
Based on your agency’s most recent CNA, please complete Table 1: Needs Table and Table 2: Priority 
Ranking Table.   

 
Table 1: Needs Table 

Needs Identified 
Level 
(C/F) 

Agency 
Mission 
(Y/N) 

Currently 
Addressing 

(Y/N) 
If not currently 

addressing, why? 

Agency 
Priority 
(Y/N) 

Individuals/Families lack stable housing. F Y Y Choose an item. Y 
Individuals/Families lack job opportunities 
that pay a living wage. F Y Y Choose an item. Y 

Community lacks access to healthcare. C Y Y Choose an item. Y 

Individuals/Families lack nutritious food. F Y Y Choose an item. Y 
Individuals/Families lack safe and clean 
neighborhoods. F Y Y Choose an item. Y 
Individuals/Families lack educational 
resources and support. F Y Y Choose an item. Y 

Needs Identified: Enter each need identified in your agency’s most recent CNA. Ideally, agencies should use 
ROMA needs statement language in Table 1. ROMA needs statements are complete sentences that identify the 
need. For example, “Individuals lack living wage jobs” or “Families lack access to affordable housing” are needs 
statements. Whereas “Employment” or “Housing” are not. Add row(s) if additional space is needed.  

Level (C/F): Identify whether the need is a community level (C) or a family level (F) need. If the need is a 
community level need, the need impacts the geographical region directly. If the need is a family level need, it 
will impact individuals/families directly.  

Agency Mission (Y/N): Indicate if the identified need aligns with your agency’s mission. 

Currently Addressing (Y/N): Indicate if your agency is addressing the identified need. 

If not currently addressing, why?: If your agency is not addressing the identified need, please select a response 
from the dropdown menu.  

Agency Priority: Indicate if the identified need is an agency priority. 

Page 27 of 233



18 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Table 2: Priority Ranking Table 

 Agency Priorities 
Description of 

programs, services, activities 

Indicator(s) or 
Service(s) Category 

 

1. 
Individuals/Families lack 
stable housing. 

Sanctuary Homeless Services: Provides emergency to 
permanent housing solutions using a Housing-First 
approach, including outreach services, housing navigation, 
and permanent housing support. (~581 annually) 
 
Energy Services: Offers utility payment assistance and 
weatherization measures to improve energy efficiency and 
safety, helping over 10,000 households annually.  
 

FNPI 4a, 4b, 4c, 4d, 4e, 
4f, 4g, 4h 
 
SRV 4c, 4d, 4e, 4f, 4g, 
4h, 4i, 4j, 4k, 4l, 4m, 4n, 
4o, 4p, 4q, 4r, 4s, 4t 

2. 

Individuals/Families lack job 
opportunities that pay a 
living wage. 

Local Conservation Corps (LCC): Offers paid job training to 
ages 18-26 and educational opportunities for young adults, 
including high school diploma programs and college credit 
courses. (~141 annually) 
 
Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC): Provides a 12-
week training program to ages 18-64 to prepare individuals 
for the construction workforce. (~62 annually) 
 
Workforce Connection Young Adult Program: Guides 
young adults ages 14-24 towards education, training, and 
career development. (~441 annually) 
 
Summer Internship Program: Targets high school 
graduates transitioning to postsecondary education, 
offering mentorship opportunities. (~81 annually) 
 

FNPI 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 
1f, 1g, 2e, 2f, 2g, 2h,  
 
SRV 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 
1f, 1g, 1h, 1i, 1j, 1k, 1l, 
1m, 1n, 1o, 1p, 1q, 2d, 
2e, 2h, 2i, 2j, 2p, 2q,  

3. 
Community lacks access to 
healthcare. 

Community Health Center: Provides reproductive health 
services, STI testing, and transportation for teens to clinic 
appointments. (~2,476 annually) 
 
Dental Health & School Based Sealant Program: Offers 
dental screenings, education, and preventative services to 
low-income families. (~2,950 annually) 
 
Adolescent Health Education Programs: Delivers health 
education and case management services on topics like 
reproductive health and healthy relationships. (~11,123 
annually) 
 
LGBTQ+ Resource Center: Provides STI screenings, 
supportive healthcare, and mental health services. (~438 
annually) 
 

FNPI 5a, 5b, 5c, 5d, 5e, 
5f, 5g, 5h, 5i, 5j 
 
SRV 5j, 5k, 5l, 5m, 5n, 
5o, 5p, 5q, 5u, 5v, 5w, 
5aa, 5bb, 5cc, 5dd, 5ee, 
7a 

4. 
Individuals/Families lack 
nutritious food. 

Women, Infants & Children (WIC): Provides healthy food, 
nutrition education, and breastfeeding support to over 
27,000 participants annually.  
 
Food Distribution: Distributes essential food commodities to 
low-income families in rural and inner-city areas. (~13,942 
homes annually)  
 
Food Services Home Delivery: Delivers nutritious meals to 

FNPI 5d, 5e, 5j 
 
SRV 5ff, 5gg, 5hh, 5ii, 5jj 

Page 28 of 233



19 | P a g e  

 

 

homebound seniors. (~1,200 annually) 
 
Summer Meals for Kids: Offers free nutritious meals to 
children and disabled individuals during the summer break. 

5. 

Individuals/Families lack 
safe and clean 
neighborhoods. 

Advance Peace Fresno: Implements healing-centered 
strategies to reduce gun violence through mentorship and 
conflict resolution. (~60 annually) 
 
Central Valley Against Human Trafficking (CVAHT): 
Supports survivors of human trafficking with resources and 
personalized action plans. (~121 annually) 
 
LGBTQ+ Resource Center: Provides a safe space and 
expert guidance on resources, including STI screenings, 
supportive healthcare, and housing assistance. (~438 
annually) 
 
Transit Systems: Provides transportation services, 
including a shuttle service for students, enhancing access 
to education and reducing travel challenges. (~80,000 
annually) 
 

FNPI 4a, 4b, 5a, 5b, 5c, 
6a, 6b, 6c 
 
SRV 4c, 4d, 4e, 4m, 4n, 
4o, 4p, 5j, 5k, 5l, 5m, 5n, 
5o, 5v, 5w, 5x, 7a, 7c, 7d 

6. 

Individuals/Families lack 
educational resources and 
support. 

Head Start 0 to 5: Offers educational, emotional, social, 
health, and nutritional services to children and families, 
preparing children for academic success. (~2,000 
annually)  
 
School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL): Provides 
comprehensive educational experience with classroom-
based and independent study options, along with case 
management support. (~223 annually) 
 
Foster Grandparent Program: Engages older adults ages 
55+ in volunteer activities to support children's education 
and emotional literacy. (~55 annually) 

 

FNPI 2a, 2b, 2c, 2d, 2e, 
2f, 2g, 2h, 2i, 2j, 5a, 5c 
 
SRV 2a, 2b, 2c, 2d, 2e, 
2h, 2p, 2q, 5a, 5b, 5c, 5d, 
5g, 7a  

Agency Priorities: Rank the needs identified as a priority in Table 1: Needs Table according to your agency’s 
planned priorities. Ideally, agencies should use ROMA needs statement language. Insert row(s) if additional space is 
needed. 

Description of programs, services, activities: Briefly describe the program, services, or activities that your 
agency will provide to address the need. Including the number of clients who are expected to achieve the 
indicator in a specified timeframe.  

Indicator/Service Category: List the indicator(s) (CNPI, FNPI) or service(s) (SRV) that will be reported on in 
Modules 3 and 4 of the CSBG Annual Report. 

Page 29 of 233



20 | P a g e  

 

 

Part II: Community Action Plan 
CSBG Act Section 676(b)(11) 
California Government Code Sections 12745(e), 12747(a) 
California Code of Regulations Sections 100651 and 100655 

 
Vision and Mission Statements 
ROMA – Planning  

 
 

1. Provide your agency’s Vision Statement. 

A strong Fresno County where people have resources to shape their future free from poverty. 

2. Provide your agency’s Mission Statement. 

We fight to end poverty. 

 
  

Page 30 of 233



21 | P a g e  

 

 

Causes and Conditions of Poverty 
Organizational Standards 1.1, 1.2, 3.2, 3.4  
ROMA – Planning  

 
 

1. Describe the key findings of your analysis of information collected directly from low-income 
individuals to better understand their needs. (Organizational Standards 1.1, 1.2) 

The information below was collected during the agency’s needs assessment survey and community focus 
groups and forums. Some statistical data from the needs assessment was also included to support the 
responses received from the community. 3,542 surveys were received, four (4) community forums, and 57 
focus groups.  

Affordable Housing and Homelessness:  

• A consistent and urgent need for affordable and quality housing was identified, with many 
communities highlighting the high cost of living and the need for more housing options, 
including shelters for the homeless.  

• Rental assistance and programs to assist in home repairs are also significant needs.  
• Safe and affordable housing is a significant concern, with 73% of community survey 

respondents indicating it as a major need.  
• There is a high rate of substandard housing, with 42% of homes having at least one 

substandard condition.  
• Many residents experience a housing cost burden, with 38% spending more than 30% of their 

income on housing.  
• Homelessness is a critical issue, with 1,128 households identified as homeless in the 2023 

Point-In-Time Count.  

Childcare and Education:  

• There is a significant demand for affordable childcare, extended school hours, and more 
educational resources, including after-school programs and support for special needs 
children.  

• A majority (72.95%) of respondents have children, with 32.68% participating in Head Start or 
Early Head Start.  

• Common childcare challenges include cost (46.22%) and availability (30.65%).  
• Many respondents (40.48%) need full-time childcare services.  
• Educational attainment is low among low-income individuals, with many lacking a high school 

diploma or higher education.  
• There are disparities in educational outcomes, particularly among children of color.  
• Access to quality early childhood education and childcare is limited, especially for infants and 

toddlers.  

Employment and Financial Assistance:  

• Many individuals expressed the need for better job opportunities, higher wages, and financial 

Page 31 of 233



22 | P a g e  

 

 

assistance to cope with the rising cost of living.  This includes job training programs and 
support for finding employment.  

• A notable portion (30.65%) of respondents are seeking employment.  
• Major employment needs include job opportunities within the community (63.54%) and 

childcare access to get a job (63.76%).  
• Common employment challenges include low-paying jobs (48.50%) and lack of skills 

(43.68%).  
• Earned income is the primary source of household income for 70.76% of respondents.  
• Unemployment and underemployment are significant issues, with the unemployment rate at 

9.5% as of March 2024.  
• Many low-income individuals work in low-wage jobs without benefits, contributing to financial 

instability.  
• There is a need for better job opportunities, career training, and support for individuals 

seeking employment.  
• Assistance with utilities, such as paying for electricity and water, was frequently mentioned, 

along with the need for basic necessities like clothing and household items.  

Transportation: 

• Access to reliable and affordable transportation is a major concern, with many communities 
needing better public transportation options, bus vouchers, and safer routes for children to get 
to school.  

• Local transportation for shopping, medical, school, or work is a major need for 50.41% of 
respondents.  

• Additional hours of transportation operation (nights/weekends) are also a significant need.  
• Transportation is a barrier for many low-income individuals, with limited public transportation 

options and long commute times.  
• Lack of vehicle ownership is common in certain communities, further limiting access to 

essential services and opportunities.  

Healthcare and Mental Health Services:  

• Access to affordable healthcare, including mental health services, is a critical need.  Many 
communities also highlighted the lack of healthcare professionals and the need for better 
medical facilities.  

• Limited access to health services and difficulty getting timely appointments are major health 
needs for 55.22% of respondents.  

• Insurance coverage and enrollment assistance are also significant concerns.  
• There are high rates of chronic diseases and poor health outcomes, particularly in low-income 

and minority communities.  
• Mental health services and support for substance abuse are needed to address the high rates 

of depression, anxiety, and substance abuse.  
• There is a major need for free/low-cost mental health services (61.62%) and substance abuse 

treatment services (58.71%).  

Page 32 of 233



23 | P a g e  

 

 

Food Security:  

• There is a need for more food banks, affordable healthy food options, and better nutritional 
support for families.  

• Food insecurity is prevalent, particularly among Black/African American and Hispanic 
residents.  

• Many low-income individuals lack access to healthy food, with 11.5% of the low-income 
population living more than ½ mile from the nearest supermarket or grocery store.  

• Participation in food assistance programs like CalFresh and WIC is not maximized. 

Community Resources and Support:  

• Many individuals emphasized the need for better access to community resources, including 
support groups, educational programs, and activities for children and families.  

• Emergency shelters for natural disasters (57.24%) and neighborhood clean-up projects 
(63.80%) are major needs.  

• Crime reduction and neighborhood safety programs are also highly needed (66.26%).  
• Schools (52.99%), churches (48.75%), and people (46.39%) are seen as the main strengths 

of the community.  

Specialized Support:  

• Specific groups, such as seniors, LGBTQ+ individuals, and those with disabilities, highlighted 
the need for tailored support services, including affirming housing, healthcare, and 
employment opportunities.  

Communication: 

• Digital connectivity is a challenge, with disparities in access to high-speed internet impacting 
education, employment, and access to services.  

2. Describe your agency's assessment findings specific to poverty and its prevalence related to 
gender, age, and race/ethnicity for your service area(s). (Organizational Standard 3.2) 

Poverty Rates: The overall poverty rate in Fresno County is 19%, with significant variations 
across different communities and demographic groups.  For example, the poverty rate among 
female-headed households with children is 49%, while the rate for seniors is 14%. 

Racial and Ethnic Disparities: Hispanic/Latino residents make up 54% of the county's 
population, with higher concentrations in certain communities.  Black/African American and 
Hispanic residents experience higher rates of poverty and food insecurity compared to White 
residents.  The data also revealed disparities in educational attainment and health outcomes 
among different racial and ethnic groups.  

Gender Disparities: Female-headed households with children are disproportionately affected by 
poverty, with higher rates of unemployment and underemployment.  Women also face barriers to 
accessing affordable childcare and healthcare services. 

Page 33 of 233



24 | P a g e  

 

 

Age Disparities: Children and seniors are particularly vulnerable to poverty. The poverty rate for 
children under five years is higher than the general population, with significant impacts on their 
health, education, and overall well-being.  Seniors face challenges related to housing affordability, 
healthcare access, and social isolation. 

3. “Causes of poverty” are the negative factors that create or foster barriers to self-sufficiency and/or 
reduce access to resources in communities in which low-income individuals live. After review and 
analysis of your needs assessment data, describe the causes of poverty in your agency’s service 
area(s). (Organizational Standard 3.4) 

Education: Limited access to quality education or low educational attainment levels leads to 
limited employment opportunities and lower wages, which contributes to poverty.  

Unemployment/Underemployment: High unemployment rates or a lack of job opportunities for 
specific segments of the population are persistent in the service area, particularly for individuals 
with limited skills or education, which makes it difficult for people to escape poverty.  
Underemployment, where individuals work part-time or in jobs that don't match their skills, also 
keeps people in poverty.  

Low Wages: Fresno County data shows wages vary among specific cohorts of the population and 
contribute to poverty rates and inequities.  

Demographic Factors: Certain demographic factors contribute to poverty rates.  For example, a 
high percentage of single-parent households and households where the adult has limited English 
proficiency face increased vulnerability to poverty.  

Affordable Housing: The availability and affordability of housing in the area plays a significant 
role in poverty.  High housing costs or limited affordable housing options consume a significant 
portion of a household's income, leaving less for other essential needs.  

Racial and Ethnic Disparities: Systemic inequalities and racial or ethnic disparities contribute to 
higher poverty rates among certain groups, as they face discrimination, limited access to 
resources, and fewer opportunities for economic mobility.  

Economic Shocks and Lingering Pandemic Transitions: Economic downturns, job losses, or 
changes in local industries are having a significant impact on poverty rates.  Inflation of the cost of 
goods and services is occurring at the same time as pandemic assistance is falling away, returning 
and leaving many in poverty. 

4. “Conditions of poverty” are the negative environmental, safety, health and/or economic 
conditions that may reduce investment or growth in communities where low-income individuals 
live. After review and analysis of your needs assessment data, describe the conditions of 
poverty in your agency’s service area(s). (Organizational Standard 3.4) 

Overall Poverty Rate: 19% of individuals in Fresno County live in poverty, with concentrated 
poverty in the City of Fresno and rural areas such as Huron, Mendota, and Orange Cove.  

Family Poverty: 15% of families have an income below the poverty level.  Among these, 40% are 

Page 34 of 233



25 | P a g e  

 

 

married-couples with children, and 49% are female-headed households with children.  

Senior Poverty: The poverty rate for seniors in Fresno County is 14%, higher than the 11% rate 
for California.  

Educational Inequities: Schools in lower-income neighborhoods often have fewer resources and 
larger class sizes, impacting educational outcomes.  The school funding formula, dependent on 
property taxes, results in disparities between low-income and affluent neighborhoods.  

Unemployment and Low-Wage Jobs: The unemployment rate in Fresno County is 9.5%, higher 
than the state and national rates.  Over 34,000 workers are underemployed.  Community survey 
respondents identified a need for better job opportunities, career training assistance, and 
affordable childcare.  

Inadequate Housing: 42% of homes in Fresno County have at least one substandard condition, 
contributing to health challenges and safety concerns.  Housing instability and homelessness are 
significant issues, with 64% of community survey respondents noting a major need for temporary 
housing, utility assistance, home repair programs, safe multi-family housing, and energy efficiency 
programs.  

Food Insecurity: Food insecurity is prevalent, particularly in communities with high poverty rates 
and limited access to food.  More than 50,000 low-income people in Fresno County live in areas 
with low access to food.  Black/African American and Hispanic residents experience higher food 
insecurity rates than Whites.  

Limited Access to Healthcare: Access to affordable healthcare services is a barrier for people in 
poverty.  The ratio of healthcare providers to low-income residents is low, and transportation 
barriers further limit access.  Over 61,544 people in Fresno County are uninsured, with specific 
cohorts such as pregnant mothers and Medicaid recipients being more greatly impacted.  

Maternal and Child Health Disparities: 28% of births are to mothers in poverty, and the teen 
birth rate is 4%.  The rate of prenatal depression is 17%, and the infant mortality rate for Black 
infants is significantly higher than for Hispanic/Latino and White infants.  

Adverse Early Childhood Experiences: The rate of child abuse in Fresno County is 61.3 per 
1,000 children, higher than the state rate of 43.5 per 1,000.  Over 14,000 children under five live in 
single-parent families, and more than 5,000 children under six are in double-up housing or are 
unhoused.  There were 8,748 domestic violence reports contributing to homelessness and family 
trauma. 

5. Describe your agency’s data and findings obtained through the collecting, analyzing, and 
reporting of customer satisfaction data. 

Customer satisfaction questions were incorporated into the needs assessment survey and from 
those questions, the following data was gathered and reviewed: 

• Most respondents (87.45%) found it either very easy or easy to access Fresno EOC 
program services. 

Page 35 of 233



26 | P a g e  

 

 

• A high percentage (95.95%) reported that services were provided in a timely manner.  

• The majority (97.77%) felt welcome and respected by Fresno EOC staff and volunteers. 

• A significant portion (94.35%) felt that their issues or concerns were effectively addressed 
by the staff.  

• The overall weighted average satisfaction rating is 4.59 out of 5, with 73.24% rating their 
satisfaction as 5 out of 5. 

The agency has a customer satisfaction data collection process in addition to the needs 
assessment survey. Customers can complete the satisfaction survey at any time which will provide 
continuous insight. Through collecting and discussing customer satisfaction data, the agency has 
implemented several changes such as moving to electronic intake forms and changing phone 
systems. 

Page 36 of 233



27 | P a g e  

 

 

Tripartite Board of Directors 
CSBG Act Sections 676B(a) and (b), 676(b)(10) 
Organizational Standards 1.1. 3.5 
ROMA – Evaluation  

 
 

1. Describe your agency’s procedures under which a low-income individual, community 
organization, religious organization, or representative of low-income individuals that considers 
its organization or low-income individuals to be inadequately represented on your agency’s 
board to petition for adequate representation. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(10), Organizational 
Standard 1.1) 

To ensure Fresno EOC's Board adequately represents the community, the agency has a tri-partite 
system for electing board members. Eight board members must be from the public sector i.e. 
publicly elected officials or their designees, eight must be from the private sector, including from 
businesses, public agencies, and/or community groups, and eight must be elected low-income 
target area representatives from throughout Fresno County.  

Any person or organization that would like to have representation on the Board of Commissioners 
may apply or nominate someone for one of the eight private sector representatives. Any low-
income individual may apply for one of the eight target area representative positions and 
participate in a democratic selection process. The availability of positions and how to apply are 
made publicly available via agency websites and other publicly accessible outlets such as social 
media. This ensures that all organizations and individuals in the community have an equal 
opportunity to increase their group representation on the Board of Commissioners. Any concerns 
or petitions can be addressed in the public comment section of the monthly Board of 
Commissioner meetings. 

2. Describe your process for communicating with and receiving formal approval from your agency 
board of the Community Needs Assessment (Organizational Standard 3.5). 

The first step in the Community Needs Assessment (CNA) process is presenting a proposed 
timeline to the board, outlining key milestones for data collection, analysis, review, and approval. 
Once the timeline is approved, the agency begins gathering data through various methods such as 
surveys, focus groups, interviews, and reviewing existing reports. After the CNA has been drafted, 
it undergoes an internal review process where department heads, staff, and advisory groups 
provide feedback. This input is incorporated into the final version of the CNA, which is then 
prepared for the board. An executive summary is created to accompany the full report, providing 
the board with an overview of the key findings and recommendations. The agency then schedules 
to formally present the CNA at the next available board meeting. During the meeting, the agency’s 
leadership and/or consultant presents the report, highlighting the assessment’s findings and 
addressing any recommendations. The board reviews the document, discusses the findings, and 
may ask questions or request clarification on certain points. After the discussion, the board votes 
to formally approve the CNA. Following the board’s decision, the agency communicates the 

Page 37 of 233



28 | P a g e  

 

 

approval internally to staff, ensuring everyone is aligned on the next steps. The approved CNA 
serves as the foundation for the agency’s future planning, guiding action plans and resource 
allocation. 

Page 38 of 233



29 | P a g e  

 

 

Service Delivery System 
CSBG Act Section 676(b)(3)(A)  
State Plan 14.3a 
ROMA - Implementation 

 
1. Describe your agency’s service delivery system. Include a description of your client intake 

process or system and specify whether services are delivered via direct services or 
subcontractors, or a combination of both. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(3)(A), State Plan 14.3a) 

Fresno EOC has provided the Fresno County community with services for 60 years. The agency 
manages a service delivery system that is designed to meet the diverse needs of the low-income 
individuals and families in the target areas. The agency’s strategic plan is to provide holistic 
support to clients in the following focus areas: food insecurity, housing stability, employment 
opportunities, community safety, educational achievement, and health and wellness. 

To support service delivery, the agency has implemented a central intake system (CAP60) 
whereby client data is entered into and tracked for all programs. The intent of the central intake 
system is to provide unduplicated service and client counts, decentralized access to services, client 
referrals across internal programs and partners, and advanced programmatic reporting. This 
system simplifies entrance into our programs and significantly improves efficiency. To expand 
accessibility, the agency continues to add standalone central intake kiosks in strategic target areas 
based on our needs assessment feedback. We are committed to ensuring that language, disability, 
education, and transportation are not barriers to receiving services.  

The majority of the agency's programs provide services directly to clients, using a combination of 
direct and subcontracted services. Because the agency has diverse funding, the client intake 
process varies from program to program, but generally includes an intake form and interview. If a 
specific intake system is required by a funder, programs will upload client data to the central intake 
system as needed. During this process, programs need to verify eligibility and will ask for 
supporting documents depending on their agreed to intake process. These documents may include 
income verification, a Medicaid card, a letter from the foster system, etc. Clients are asked to 
complete enrollment forms and optional demographics surveys. 

2. Describe how the poverty data related to gender, age, and race/ethnicity referenced in Part II: 
Causes and Conditions of Poverty, Question 2 will inform your service delivery and strategies 
in the coming two years? 

The poverty data related to gender, age, and race/ethnicity will significantly inform service delivery 
and strategies in the coming two years.   

Gender-specific strategies: targeted support services such as job training, childcare assistance, 
and financial literacy programs will be prioritized for female-headed households, which have a high 
poverty rate of 49%. Programs will also focus on providing comprehensive support to single 

Page 39 of 233



30 | P a g e  

 

 

mothers, including access to affordable childcare, housing assistance, and educational 
opportunities.   

Age-specific strategies: will address the high poverty rates among children, especially those 
under five, by expanding early childhood education programs like Head Start and Early Head Start, 
and integrating additional support services such as nutrition programs, healthcare access, and 
parental support.  For seniors, services will include increased access to healthcare, technology 
training, affordable housing, and social support programs to improve their quality of life.  

Race/ethnicity-specific strategies: will develop culturally responsive services for Hispanic/Latino 
and Black/African American communities, which experience higher poverty rates.  This includes 
bilingual education programs, targeted job training, and community health initiatives. Programs will 
also focus on improving educational attainment among minority groups by providing scholarships, 
mentorship, and after-school programs to reduce dropout rates and enhance future employment 
opportunities. Holistic approaches will involve engaging community leaders and members in 
planning and implementing services to ensure they are culturally relevant and effectively address 
the unique needs of different demographic groups.   

Page 40 of 233



31 | P a g e  

 

 

Linkages and Funding Coordination 
CSBG Act Sections 676(b)(1)(B) and (C); 676(b)(3)(B), (C) and (D); 676(b)(4), (5), (6), and (9) 
California Government Code Sections 12747(a), 12760 
Organizational Standards 2.1 
State Plan 9.3b, 9.4b, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1b, 14.1c, 14.3d, 14.4 

 

 

1. Describe how your agency coordinates funding with other providers in your service area. If 
there is a formalized coalition of social service providers in your service area, list the coalition(s) 
by name and methods used to coordinate services/funding. (CSBG Act Sections 676(b)(1)(C), 
676(b)(9); Organizational Standard 2.1; State Plan 14.1c) 

Fresno EOC's approach to service delivery leverages other local service providers and their assets 
to fill gaps in services to its clients. This can be seen by the agency’s participation in numerous 
collaborations: 
 
Health Services Program: 

• Collaborates with schools and organizations to implement comprehensive sex education 
and dental services.  

Sanctuary and Support Services Program: 

• Partners with organizations like California Coalition for Youth, Fresno Unified School 
District, Centro La Familia Advocacy Services, Inc, Integral Community Solutions, Inc, and 
others to provide integrated care, legal assistance, and supportive services for youth, young 
adults, chronically homeless adults, survivors of human trafficking, and the LGBTQ+ 
community. 

Local Conservation Corps (LCC): 

• Works with entities such as the City of Fresno, County of Fresno, CalRecycle, Amazon, and 
others to fund and support recycling, public lands, and workforce development programs.  

Transit Systems Program: 

• Coordinates with organizations like California Veterans Home, Fresno Unified School 
District, Central Valley Regional Center, and others to provide transportation services for 
various populations. 

Energy Services Program: 

• Partners with organizations like Pacific Gas and Electric Company, City of Fresno, Proteus 
Inc, and others to install weatherization measures, solar systems, and provide financial 
assistance for energy bills. 

 

Page 41 of 233



32 | P a g e  

 

 

Advance Peace Fresno: 

• Collaborates with organizations like Crime Survivors for Safety and Justice, Fresno United, 
Fresno Barrios Unidos, and others to support survivors, address food insecurities, and 
provide resources for formerly incarcerated citizens.  

Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) Program: 

• Partners with Anthem Blue Cross, California Health Collaborative, Cal Viva Health, and 
others to provide postpartum depression prevention, baby showers, and breastfeeding 
support.  

Fresno Regional Workforce Development Board: 

• Funds programs like the Fresno Urban East Young Adult Program and collaborates with 
organizations like the Economic Development Corporation, County of Fresno Probation, 
and others to provide training and employment opportunities.  

School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL): 

• Partners with Central California Legal Services, CSU Fresno Social Work Department, 
Cultural Arts Rotary of Fresno, and others to provide legal advice, internships, food pantry 
services, and medical referrals.  

Food Services Program: 

• Partners with various organizations, including Fresno State Dietetic Internship Program, 
Roman Catholic Diocese of Fresno, Catalano Fenske & Associates, Centro La Familia, 
Fresno Madera Area Agency on Aging, City of Selma, Kepler Neighborhood School, Kaiser 
Permanente Fresno Medical Center, City of Fowler, and RH Community Builders, to provide 
nutritious meals and support services to students, seniors, and homeless individuals and 
families.  

 
Below are a few examples of the coalitions that the programs work with and how they support the 
coordination of funding: 
 
California Coalition for Youth: 

• The Fresno EOC Sanctuary and Support Services program collaborates with this coalition, 
which operates the state-wide crisis line for youth and young adults.  The Sanctuary 
Director serves on their Board of Directors reflecting active participation and coordination.  

Fresno Madera Continuum of Care (FMCoC): 

• This coalition assists homeless persons in transitioning from homelessness to independent 
or supportive permanent housing.  The Fresno EOC Sanctuary and Support Services 
program works with FMCoC to provide these services and the Sanctuary Director serves as 
the FMCoC Treasurer.  

Page 42 of 233



33 | P a g e  

 

 

California Association of Local Conservation Corps: 

• The Fresno EOC Local Conservation Corps (LCC) is part of this state-wide coalition, which 
supports local conservation work, advocacy, and provides programmatic support.  

The Corps Network: 

• This national organization provides legislative and programmatic support to the Fresno EOC 
Local Conservation Corps (LCC). 

YouthBuild USA: 

• The Fresno EOC Local Conservation Corps (LCC) partners with YouthBuild USA, which 
leads YouthBuild programming for construction and AmeriCorps Education awards.  

 Central Valley Freedom Coalition (CVFC): 

• The Fresno EOC Sanctuary and Support Services program and this coalition leverage their 
resources and networks to raise awareness, train law enforcement and community 
members, and ensure trafficking survivors have access to essential services like shelter, 
legal aid, and counseling. Fresno EOC created this coalition in 2009 and the agency’s 
CVAHT Manager serves as the coalition’s Chairperson. 

 
2. Provide information on any memorandums of understanding and/or service agreements your 

agency has with other entities regarding coordination of services/funding. (CSBG Act Section 
676(b)(3)(C), Organizational Standard 2.1, State Plan 9.7) 

Through strategic partnerships and collaborations, Fresno EOC ensures the effective delivery of 
services across multiple sectors, including health, support services, conservation, transit, energy, 
peace initiatives, women and children’s services, workforce development, early childhood 
education, and alternative education. 

The Health Services Program collaborates with various school districts and organizations to 
implement comprehensive sex education and dental services.  These partnerships include Agape 
Schools, Central Unified School District, and the Boys and Girls Club of Fresno County, among 
others, ensuring that youth receive essential health education and dental care.  

The Sanctuary and Support Services Program partners with multiple organizations to provide crisis 
intervention, counseling, legal assistance, and support for homeless individuals, survivors of 
human trafficking, and the LGBTQ+ community. Key coordination includes working with Fresno 
Family Counseling, Integral Community Solutions, Inc, and Centro La Familia, which help deliver 
comprehensive support services to vulnerable populations. 

The Local Conservation Corps (LCC) works with local and state entities to fund and support 
recycling programs, legal services, educational opportunities, and job training.  Notable partners 

Page 43 of 233



34 | P a g e  

 

 

include the City of Fresno, CalRecycle, and the Fresno Workforce Development Board, which 
contribute to the success of LCC’s environmental and workforce development initiatives.  

The Transit Systems Program collaborates with various organizations to provide transportation 
services for veterans, students, developmentally disabled individuals, and the elderly. Partnerships 
with entities like the California Veterans Home, Fresno Unified School District, and United Cerebral 
Palsy ensure that transportation needs are met for diverse community members. 

The Energy Services Program partners with subcontractors and utility companies to install 
weatherization measures, and provide financial assistance for energy bills. Collaborations with 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company, and Habitat for Humanity help improve energy efficiency and 
support households experiencing energy crises. 

Advance Peace Fresno collaborates with organizations to support crime survivors, address food 
insecurities, and provide resources for formerly incarcerated individuals.  Partners such as Crime 
Survivors for Safety and Justice, Fresno United, and Time Done play a crucial role in extending the 
reach and impact of the program’s initiatives.  

The Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) Program works with health organizations and community 
partners to provide postpartum support, baby showers, and distribute essential supplies like 
diapers. Anthem Blue Cross, California Health Collaborative, American Heart Association, and the 
Central California Food Bank are key partners in supporting WIC clients.  

The Food Services Program has established several partnerships to enhance service coordination 
and funding. Collaborations include the Fresno State Dietetic Internship Program, which provides 
dietetic interns, and catering agreements with the Roman Catholic Diocese of Fresno, Catalano 
Fenske & Associates, and Centro La Familia. The Fresno Madera Area Agency on Aging and the 
City of Selma contract with Food Services to provide meals for seniors, while Kepler Neighborhood 
School ensures students receive nutritious meals. Kaiser Permanente Fresno Medical Center 
hosts a weekly Farmers Market and partners in the Market Match program. The City of Fowler also 
contracts for senior meals, and RH Community Builders partners for milk delivery to locations 
offering housing and support services to homeless individuals and families.  

The Workforce Development Programs engage with workforce boards, educational institutions, and 
employers to provide job training, internships, and employment opportunities.  Collaborations with 
the Fresno Regional Workforce Development Board, State Center Community College District, and 
various construction employers help create pathways to employment for youth and adults.  

The Head Start 0 to 5 Program partners with educational and social service organizations to 
support children and families with special needs, housing assistance, and health services. Key 
partners include the Fresno County Superintendent of Schools, Central Valley Regional Center, 
and Fresno State’s School of Nursing.  

Page 44 of 233



35 | P a g e  

 

 

The School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL) works with legal services, food banks, medical providers, 
and educational institutions to support students' academic and personal needs. Partnerships with 
Central California Legal Services, Fresno City College, and the Central California Food Bank 
ensure that students receive comprehensive support to succeed in their education and personal 
lives. 

3. Describe how your agency ensures delivery of services to low-income individuals while avoiding 
duplication of services in the service area(s). (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(5), California 
Government Code 12760) 

Fresno EOC has approximately 585 partnerships with other community service providers both 
public and private. These partnerships ensure services target low-income, minority communities 
that are disproportionately impacted by poverty while avoiding duplication of services and aligning 
funding. This is done through targeted outreach, locating concentrated areas of poverty throughout 
the county, data sharing, and listening to the voices of those communities.  

Program and agency staff are in regular communication with other service providers to ensure 
services are maximized, and clients are referred to programs they may need. This helps avoid 
service duplication and ensures that resources are used in a more efficient way. Fresno EOC 
locates its services and headquarters within the communities and neighborhoods that demonstrate 
the most need. For example, the Local Conservation Corps (LCC) operate community centers in 
Southwest Fresno, a neighborhood that experiences higher poverty and pollution rates compared 
to the rest of the city. Low-income individuals and families can more readily benefit from LCC 
services when they are close and accessible. Programs such as SOUL (School of Unlimited 
Learning) Charter School and Sanctuary and Support Services also have locations in the target 
area of downtown Fresno City. 

Community needs are identified by gathering information directly from target areas and through the 
agency’s Board of Commissioners that provide the necessary insight and direction for program 
services to meet the needs of low- income populations. Advisory Committees made up of 
community members and stakeholders also inform projects and services that the programs deliver.  

4. Describe how your agency will leverage other funding sources and increase programmatic 
and/or organizational capacity. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(3)(C)) 

The agency’s 2023-2026 strategic plan outlines the approach used to leverage funding sources 
and to increase programmatic and organizational capacity.  
 
Financial Structure and Support: 

• Invest in financial systems and supports improving operations, functions, programs, and 
services.  

• Significantly increase unrestricted funding for flexibility and stability.  

• Create a funding evaluation tool to assess the cost-benefit of funding opportunities.  

Page 45 of 233



36 | P a g e  

 

 

• Supplement financial gaps with flexible funding.  

Program and Administrative Stabilization: 

• Ensure stabilization of current programs and administrative structures, including staffing, 
alignment, evaluation plans, salaries, and benefits.  

• Provide infrastructure stabilization for current programs to prepare for expansion into new 
programming areas.  

Community Engagement and Responsiveness: 

• Create consistent communication channels for community members to share experiences 
and ideas.  

• Invest in technology to implement a data collection and analysis system to understand 
community needs and program effectiveness.  

Advocacy and Partnerships: 

• Increase visibility and influence to advocate for anti-poverty policies and legislation.  

• Build and reinforce partnerships with elected officials, community agencies, and mission-
aligned organizations to influence and advocate for policy changes.  

• Develop a Community Relationship Management system to index external partners and 
stakeholders.  

Staff Development and Support: 

• Hire and train staff to embody Fresno EOC's values and advance its mission.  

• Provide education on core competencies of organizational leadership and support tools to 
manage workload and improve morale and organizational culture.  

• Invest in a consistent, fair, and competitive compensation system. 
 
5. Describe your agency’s contingency plan for potential funding reductions. (California 

Government Code Section 12747(a)) 

In the event of a reduction in funding, Fresno EOC would modify program offerings, while also 
mitigating the impact on client service delivery. In the event of a severe reduction in funding, 
Fresno EOC will proceed with the following actionable steps:  

• The CEO would provide notification to the Board of Commissioners 

• With support from the Board, staff would identify other sources of funding (i.e. corporate and 
donor giving, private foundations, government) to close the financial gap and ensure 
minimal impact on program services 

• Reassess the agency’s capacity to determine what level of service is feasible with the 
reduction in funding 

• Prioritize the highest needs identified from the community needs assessment and 

Page 46 of 233



37 | P a g e  

 

 

community action plan 

• Communicate any changes, pivots in client service delivery, and/or major staff reductions to 
the community through various methods (i.e. e-newsletter “Poverty Fighters”, agency 
website, social media, press release, press conference).  

Through the diversification of funding, the agency reduces the risk of significant impact of funding 
reductions. During the fourth quarter (month of October) of every fiscal year, the agency plans the 
annual budget for the following calendar year. Through this fiscal planning process, the agency 
would identify any potentially significant loss of funding and begin the process of identifying other 
sources. 

6. Describe how your agency will address the needs of youth in low‐income communities 
through youth development programs and promote increased community coordination and 
collaboration in meeting the needs of youth. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(1)(B), State Plan 
14.1b) 

Fresno EOC addresses the needs of youth in low-income communities and through several youth 
development programs: 

Local Conservation Corps (LCC):  

• Provides young adults (ages 18-26) with paid job training and educational opportunities.  

• Offers hands-on experience in environmental conservation, including solar panel 
installation, hazardous fuel reduction, and trail maintenance. 

• Supports Corpsmembers in earning college credits, high school diplomas, and 
certifications.  

Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC):  

• Prepares individuals for the workforce through an intense 12-week training program focused 
on the construction industry.  

• Facilitates job placements and apprenticeships, leading to higher-paying positions and 
career advancement.  

Workforce Connection Young Adult Program:  

• Guides young adults (ages 14-24) along the pathway to education, training, personal 
development, and rewarding careers.  

• Offers comprehensive services including job search and interview skills training, career 
counseling, workshops, and life skills coaching.  

• Provides support for both in-school and out-of-school youth, ensuring they have access to 
education and employment opportunities.  

Summer Internship Program:  

• Targets high school graduates transitioning into postsecondary education.  

Page 47 of 233



38 | P a g e  

 

 

• Offers mentorship opportunities with industry leaders, providing practical experience and 
career guidance.  

• Helps students gain valuable work experience and build professional networks.  

School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL):  

• Provides a comprehensive and fully accredited educational experience to youth, offering an 
alternative to traditional large high schools.  

• Offers both classroom-based and independent study options, with case management 
assistance to help students overcome educational obstacles.  

• Leverages the agency’s wide array of resources to support the entire family, including 
Energy Services, Health Services, and Food & Nutrition Programs.  

Fresno EOC promotes increased community coordination and collaboration through the following 
processes:  

Strategic Partnerships:  

• Collaborates with local businesses, educational institutions, and community organizations to 
create a network of support for youth development programs.  

• Engages with employers to understand their hiring needs and tailor training programs to 
meet industry demands. 

Comprehensive Support Services: 

• Provides case management assistance to help youth overcome barriers to education and 
employment, such as lack of transportation, childcare, or housing.  

• Offers wrap-around services including food assistance, health services, and financial 
literacy training to support overall well-being and stability. 

Innovative Training Approaches: 

• Utilizes technology and innovative training methods to enhance learning and skill 
development.  

• Implements programs like the YouthBuild Charter High School of California, which 
combines academic education with vocational training.  

Community Engagement:  

• Organizes key community events to expand outreach and staffing, such as the Express 
Enrollment Fair and job fairs.  

• Engages parents and community members as volunteers, fostering a supportive 
environment for youth development.  

Page 48 of 233



39 | P a g e  

 

 

7. Describe how your agency will promote increased community coordination and 
collaboration in meeting the needs of youth, and support development and expansion of 
innovative community-based youth development programs such as the establishment of 
violence‐free zones, youth mediation, youth mentoring, life skills training, job creation, 
entrepreneurship programs, after after-school childcare. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(1)(B), 
State Plan 14.1b) 

Fresno EOC promotes increased community coordination and collaboration in meeting the needs 
of youth through various innovative community-based youth development programs. These 
programs are designed to create supportive environments and provide essential resources for 
youth development: 

Advance Peace Fresno: 

• Implements healing-centered strategies to reduce gun violence through mentorship and 
conflict resolution.  

• Provides peer support, creating violence-free zones.  

Local Conservation Corps (LCC):  

• Offers paid job training and educational opportunities for young adults (ages 18-26).  

• Provides life skills training, job creation, and opportunities for earning college credits and 
high school diplomas.  

• Engages youth in environmental conservation projects, promoting entrepreneurship and 
community service. 

Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC):  

• Supports the hiring needs of Central Valley’s construction contractors through an intense 
12-week training program.  

• Prepares youth for the workforce, leading to higher-paying positions and fostering economic 
uplift.  

Workforce Connection Young Adult Program:  

• Guides young adults (ages 14-24) along the pathway to education, training, personal 
development, and rewarding careers.  

• Offers job search and interview skills training, career counseling, and workshops.  

School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL):  

• Provides a comprehensive and fully accredited educational experience with both classroom-
based and independent study options.  

• Offers case management assistance, life skills coaching, and free meals through the School 
Lunch Program.  

 

Page 49 of 233



40 | P a g e  

 

 

Foster Grandparent Program:  

• Engages older adults in mentoring and supporting children and youth, fostering 
intergenerational connections. 

• Provides emotional literacy workshops and senior tech training, enhancing community 
engagement and support.  

LGBTQ+ Resource Center:  

• Offers a safe space and expert guidance on resources, including STI screenings, supportive 
healthcare, and housing assistance.  

• Provides peer support groups, social and emotional support, and competency trainings to 
create welcoming environments.  

Strategic Partnerships:  

• Fresno EOC collaborates with local and state partners to address the growing needs of the 
community and fight poverty. 

• Partnerships with organizations like PG&E, Target, Costco, and local schools enhance the 
reach and impact of youth programs.  

Community Events:  

• Organizes key community events such as the Express Enrollment Fair and job fairs to 
streamline enrollment and recruitment processes.  

• Hosts events like “Candy Cane Xpress” to deliver holiday cheer and support to low-income 
families.  

Innovative Solutions:  

• Implements technological advancements like CAP60, a central intake system, to enhance 
efficiency and data management.  

• Incorporates ROMA (Results Oriented Management Accountability) training to evaluate and 
refine services for impactful support.  

• Fresno EOC is the Safe Place program administrator for Fresno County through its 
Sanctuary and Support Services division. This program offers immediate assistance and 
safety to youth in crisis by connecting them with a network of designated Safe Place sites, 
including schools, businesses, and community centers.  

8. Describe your agency’s coordination of employment and training activities as defined in 
Section 3 of the Workforce and Innovation and Opportunity Act [29 U.S.C. 3102]. (CSBG 
Act Section 676(b)(5); State Plan 9.4b) 

Fresno EOC coordinates employment and training activities through targeted programs designed 
to enhance employment prospects and foster economic uplift in the community: 

Local Conservation Corps (LCC):  

Page 50 of 233



41 | P a g e  

 

 

• Provides young adults (ages 18-26) with paid job training and educational opportunities.  

• Offers hands-on experience in environmental conservation, hazardous fuel reduction, and 
trail maintenance. 

• Supports Corpsmembers in earning college credits, high school diplomas, and 
certifications.  

Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC):  

• Prepares individuals for the workforce through an intense 12-week training program focused 
on the construction industry.  

• Supports the hiring needs of Central Valley’s construction contractors by providing skilled 
and trained workers.  

• Facilitates job placements and apprenticeships, leading to higher-paying positions and 
career advancement.  

Workforce Connection Young Adult Program:  

• Guides young adults (ages 14-24) along the pathway to education, training, personal 
development, and rewarding careers.  

• Offers comprehensive services including job search and interview skills training, career 
counseling, workshops, and life skills coaching.  

• Provides support for both in-school and out-of-school youth, ensuring they have access to 
education and employment opportunities.  

Summer Internship Program:  

• Targets high school graduates transitioning into postsecondary education.  

• Offers mentorship opportunities with industry leaders, providing practical experience and 
career guidance.  

• Helps students gain valuable work experience and build professional networks.  

Strategic Partnerships:  

• Collaborates with local businesses, educational institutions, and community organizations to 
create a network of support for employment and training activities. 

• Engages with employers to understand their hiring needs and tailor training programs to 
meet industry demands. 

Comprehensive Support Services: 

• Provides case management assistance to help individuals overcome barriers to 
employment, such as lack of transportation, childcare, or housing. 

• Offers wrap-around services including food assistance, health services, and financial 
literacy training to support overall well-being and stability. 

 

Page 51 of 233



42 | P a g e  

 

 

Innovative Training Approaches: 

• Utilizes technology and innovative training methods to enhance learning and skill 
development.  

• Implements programs like the YouthBuild Charter High School of California, which 
combines academic education with vocational training.  

9. Describe how your agency will provide emergency supplies and services, nutritious foods, 
and related services, as may be necessary, to counteract conditions of starvation and 
malnutrition among low-income individuals. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(4), State Plan 14.4) 

Fresno EOC provides emergency supplies and services, nutritious foods, and related services to 
counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among low-income individuals through a 
variety of targeted programs and initiatives. 

Food Distribution:  

• Distributes essential food commodities, including fresh produce, bread, beans, rice, pasta, 
and other nutritious foods to low-income families in rural and inner-city areas.  

• Operates nine distribution sites across Fresno County, serving 13,942 households.  

Food Services Home Delivery:  

• Offers a convenient and affordable solution for individuals who may need help preparing 
their own meals daily.  

• Provides home-delivered meals to 1,200 homebound seniors, producing 528,410 senior 
meals and serving 321,053 homebound senior meals. 

Summer Meals for Kids:  

• Provides free nutritious meals for children and disabled individuals during the summer 
break.  

• Operates two Food Express Buses serving rural locations and numerous physical sites, 
serving 445,503 meals to 1,616 children.  

Women, Infants & Children (WIC):  

• Provides healthy food, nutrition education, breastfeeding support, and family referrals to 
resources for over 27,000 women, children, and families in Fresno County.  

• Distributes books to improve literacy and promote child development through the Books for 
Kids initiative, with 32,377 books distributed in 2023.  

Community Health Center:  

• Offers education, counseling, and treatment services to adults and teens at risk for 
unintended pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections.  

• Provides transportation to teens for clinic appointments and administers rapid STI tests at 
various locations.  

Page 52 of 233



43 | P a g e  

 

 

Dental Health & School-Based Sealant Program:  

• Provides dental and oral health services to low-income families during in-school sessions 
and community outreach events.  

• Offers education, screenings, linkages to quality dental homes, and preventative services 
such as fluoride varnish to children.  

Energy Services: 

• Assists low-income households with utility payment assistance to prevent disconnection or 
restore service.  

• Provides weatherization measures to improve safety and energy efficiency, benefiting over 
10,000 households annually.  

Sanctuary & Support Services:  

• Offers transformative housing solutions, from emergency to permanent options, using a 
Housing-First approach.  

• Provides outreach services, housing navigation, and permanent housing support to 
individuals facing homelessness.  

Foster Grandparent Program: 

• Engages older adults in mentoring and supporting children and youth, fostering 
intergenerational connections.  

• Provides emotional literacy workshops and senior tech training, enhancing community 
engagement and support.  

10. Is your agency a dual (CSBG and LIHEAP) service provider? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No 

11. For dual agencies:  
Describe how your agency coordinates with other antipoverty programs in your area, 
including the emergency energy crisis intervention programs under Title XXVI, relating to 
low-income home energy assistance (LIHEAP) that are conducted in the community. 
(CSBG Act Section 676(b)(6), State Plan 9.5) 
For all other agencies: 
Describe how your agency coordinates services with your local LIHEAP service provider? 

Fresno EOC manages the emergency energy crisis intervention program and collaborates with a 
wide range of partners, including government entities, community-based organizations (CBOs), 
funders, and private associations, all dedicated to improving the living conditions in Fresno County. 
The agency also work closely with non-profit organizations and social service providers to identify 

Page 53 of 233



44 | P a g e  

 

 

and assist households in need. By sharing resources, information, and referrals, the agency ensures 
that eligible households receive timely assistance. These partners include, but are not limited to: 

• City and County governments 

• Chambers of Commerce 

• Faith-based organizations 

• Educational institutions 

• Central Valley Community Foundation 

• United Way and other local CBOs like Centro La Familia, Proteus, American Red Cross, 
Salvation Army 

• Fresno Regional Workforce Investment Board 

• Health agencies and hospitals 

• Housing providers (such as the Housing Authority and local CBOs that provide housing) 

Fresno EOC continues to be the forefront of energy crisis intervention by administering emergency 
energy assistance programs. Currently, we manage Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 
Program (LIHEAP), Department of Energy (DOE) Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and 
DOE Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) in Fresno County. Under the LIHEAP program emergency 
energy assistance to households facing energy crises is provided. The agency coordinates with 
utility companies and other service providers to expedite aid to those in urgent need, preventing 
disconnections and ensuring continued access to essential services.  

12. Describe how your agency will use funds to support innovative community and 
neighborhood-based initiatives, which may include fatherhood and other initiatives, with the 
goal of strengthening families and encouraging effective parenting. (CSBG Act Section 
676(b)(3)(D), State Plan 14.3d) 

Fresno EOC currently funds a variety of innovative and community-based initiatives aimed 
specifically at strengthening families and parents.  

Community-directed programs and services: 

• Creating programs and services that respond to changing community priorities, providing 
support for immediate needs and infrastructure for wealth generation. 

Holistic Support: 

• Providing for the whole person, understanding that poverty impacts the community in 
multiple ways. 

Advocacy: 

• Amplifying community voices, particularly those experiencing poverty, to lead to changes 
that disrupt systemic poverty. 

• Specific activities will include creating community spaces, participating in collaborative 

Page 54 of 233



45 | P a g e  

 

 

initiatives, increasing direct outreach, investing in technology, building and reinforcing 
partnerships, and forming coalitions. 

 
Below are some examples of initiatives the agency will use funds to support: 
 

WIC Program: 

• Baby Showers: Sponsored by Cal Viva Health, these events provide supplies, 
refreshments, giveaways, and strollers, along with breastfeeding education to new parents.  

• WIC EBT Cards: Accepts farmers market purchases by families to encourage healthy 
eating and support local agriculture. 

• Breastfeeding Support: Provided by 37 lactation specialists through hands-on support, 
breastfeeding classes, and virtual meetups.  

• Community Partnerships: Collaborations with organizations like Anthem Blue Cross, 
California Health Collaborative, Central California Food Bank, and Fresno Community 
Regional Medical Center to provide additional resources such as postpartum depression 
prevention programs, perinatal mental health resources, disposable diapers, and 
breastfeeding counseling.  

• Fatherhood Initiatives: The program acknowledges the importance of father involvement 
where the presence of fathers in the WIC staff has made the services more relatable and 
supportive for single fathers.  

Health Services: 

• Adolescent Health Project: This initiative focuses on reducing unwanted pregnancies and 
increasing reproductive health knowledge among youth.  It provides comprehensive sexual 
health education, case management services for pregnant and parenting teens, and 
promotes healthy relationships and communication. 

• Community Health Center: This Title X-funded clinic offers low-cost and no-cost family 
planning and reproductive health services, including education, outreach, counseling, STI 
testing and treatment, and contraception.  It also provides prenatal care and regular follow-
ups to ensure the health of expecting parents.  

• Dental Services: The program addresses the dental health needs of children in Fresno 
County through drive-through fluoride varnish events, school-based sealant programs, oral 
health education, and care coordination.  These services aim to improve dental health and 
increase access to dental care for underserved communities.  

• Community Engagement Program Partnerships: The program collaborates with various 
schools and community organizations to implement comprehensive sex education and 
dental services, ensuring that these initiatives reach a wide audience and have a significant 
impact on the community.  

Advance Peace Fresno Program 

• Providing mentorship and human resources to at-risk youth ages 9-30.  

• Offering mental health services and counseling to help participants recognize and cope with 

Page 55 of 233



46 | P a g e  

 

 

their traumas.  

• Engaging in community conflict mediation and street outreach to address and prevent 
violence.  

• Collaborating with various community partners to address food insecurity, housing stability, 
and employment opportunities. 

Head Start 0-5 

• Fatherhood Initiatives: The program has a successful Fatherhood annual conference that 
engages fathers in their children's education, promoting effective parenting and family 
involvement.  

• Parent Engagement and Training: The program recognizes parents as the child's first 
teacher and partners with them to enhance learning opportunities both at school and home.  
This includes providing training for parents throughout the school year.  

• Community Partnerships: Collaborations with various community organizations such as the 
Fresno County Superintendent of Schools, Central Valley Regional Center, Catholic 
Charities, and others help provide comprehensive support services to families, including 
health, nutrition, education, and social services.  

• Technology Integration: The program has moved towards becoming paperless, with digital 
applications and online referrals, making it easier for families to access services and stay 
informed about program activities.  

Advancing Fresno County Guaranteed Income Program 

• This program is a pilot initiative aimed at alleviating poverty in specific areas of Fresno 
County. Launched in July 2024, the program provides a monthly, unrestricted cash payment 
of $500 for one year to 150 qualifying households. The selected families reside in the 93706 
ZIP code in southwest Fresno and the 93234 ZIP code in Huron, areas identified as having 
high rates of concentrated poverty. 

• Program Objectives: The initiative aims to empower families by providing financial stability, 
thereby enabling them to address immediate needs, reduce economic stress, and improve 
overall well-being. By offering unconditional financial support, the program seeks to 
enhance the quality of life for participants and contribute to the reduction of poverty in the 
targeted communities. 

13. Describe how your agency will develop linkages to fill identified gaps in the services, 
through the provision of information, referrals, case management, and follow-up 
consultations. (CSBG Act Section 676(b)(3)(B), State Plan 9.3b) 

Fresno EOC addresses service gaps and develops linkages by providing information, conducting 
referrals, case management, and follow-up, all aligned with the ROMA Logic Model process. This 
strategy is part of the agency’s strategic plan for 2023-2026. 
 

Information Dissemination: 

• Fresno EOC regularly conducts needs assessments to identify community priorities, 
ensuring services are responsive to the evolving needs of the target community. This 

Page 56 of 233



47 | P a g e  

 

 

process allows the agency to identify and fill service gaps. 

• The agency actively engages with the community through surveys, meetings, and direct 
outreach, ensuring alignment with the needs and preferences of the community. 

Referrals: 

• The agency uses a centralized intake system that streamlines referrals, enabling clients to 
access multiple services through a single point of contact. This system also supports the 
ROMA process by ensuring client needs are accurately assessed and addressed.  

Case Management: 

• The agency provides integrated services such as health support, education, and housing 
assistance to address clients’ diverse needs, ensuring a holistic approach to problem-
solving. Each client receives personalized case management to guide them toward self-
sufficiency and improved well-being.  

• Fresno EOC follows the ROMA Logic Model process, which emphasizes clear goals, 
measurable outcomes, and continuous monitoring of client progress. This model helps 
ensure that interventions are effective and contribute to long-term success. 

Customer Satisfaction Surveys: 

• Fresno EOC regularly administers customer satisfaction surveys to gauge the effectiveness 
of services and gather valuable insights from clients. This feedback helps the agency refine 
programs, identify areas for improvement, and ensure that client needs are consistently 
met. 

• The results from these surveys are integrated into the ROMA Logic Model’s feedback loop, 
so that client satisfaction and the effectiveness of the services are continually assessed and 
enhanced. 

Follow-Up: 

• Through regular follow-up check-ins, case managers assess the ongoing needs of clients 
and adjust service plans as necessary to ensure clients remain on track toward achieving 
their goals. 

 

Page 57 of 233



48 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Monitoring 
ROMA – Planning, Evaluation 

 

1. If your agency utilizes subcontractors, please describe your process for monitoring the 
subcontractors. Include the frequency, type of monitoring, i.e., onsite, desk review, or both, 
follow-up on corrective action, issuance of formal monitoring reports, and emergency 
monitoring procedures. 

All programs complete requests for proposals, create memorandum of understanding or service 
agreements with subcontractors above $150,000. Fresno EOC subcontractor oversight is a vital 
part of our subcontract agreement with each subcontractor. Programs establish agreements with 
subcontractors, and program directors monitor compliance, employing both onsite and desk 
reviews for progress reporting and billing. The Finance Department approves invoices and 
processes payment for distribution, ensuring compliance. The Internal Auditor also conducts 
routine and scheduled monitoring, as required. 

The agency has multiple subcontractor contracts outlining duties and responsibilities. Desk 
reviews are conducted monthly for shorter-term projects and quarterly for multi-year contracts. 
Programs, such as our Energy Services and Sanctuary & Support Services, are required to 
conduct onsite and desk reviews as a part of funding requirements from State of California, 
Department of Community Services and Development (CSD) and Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services (CalOES), respectively. Desk reviews consist of financial, administrative, 
and programmatic requirements. Onsite reviews are conducted, as needed, to inspect project 
milestones. In the event that deficiencies are identified, Fresno EOC creates a corrective action 
plan with the subcontractor to address specific areas of concern from the monitoring process. 
Depending on the severity of the corrective actions required, timelines and follow-ups are set up 
to ensure progress is made to correct deficiencies.  

Page 58 of 233



49 | P a g e  

 

 

ROMA Application 
CSBG Act Section 676(b)(12)  
Organizational Standards 4.2, 4.3 
ROMA – Planning, Evaluation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Describe how your agency will evaluate the effectiveness of its programs and services. 
Include information about the types of measurement tools, the data sources and collection 
procedures, and the frequency of data collection and reporting. (Organizational Standard 
4.3) 

Fresno EOC utilizes numerous tracking software for delivered services. This data is analyzed to 
determine if contractual obligations are met and whether clients had a change in their condition 
that led them to seek out services. Programs measure these changes by collecting client 
attestation forms, client follow-ups/appointments, attendance logs for training/coaching sessions, 
service utilization reports, local service provider data sharing and client satisfaction surveys. 

The agency has implemented several tools and processes that report program achievements. 
Among these reports are the strategic program progress reports that were recently presented at a 
CalCAPA conference. These reports reflect the services and outcomes achieved, current 
community partners, logic models, and the programs alignment with ROMA and the CSD annual 
report services and indicators. The agency has also completed program specific dashboards that 
can be found on agency websites. This is a work in progress and there are additional dashboards 
that are in the process of being built. 

As a part of continuous improvement goals for the agency, future performance scorecards will be 
tied to program dashboards so all pertinent program data can be reviewed. 

2. Select one need from Table 2: Priority Ranking Table and describe how your agency plans 
to implement, monitor progress, and evaluate the program designed to address the need. 
Organizational Standard 4.2) 

Need: Families Lack Nutritious Food  
 

Implementation Plan 

Nutritional Education and Resources: 

• Provide educational sessions on nutrition and healthy eating habits.  

Page 59 of 233



50 | P a g e  

 

 

• Distribute materials that offer guidance on meal planning and budgeting for nutritious food. 

• Offer cooking classes and workshops on preparing healthy meals. 

• Provide medically tailored meals for prescribed customers 

• Provide nutrition assessments and counseling by a Registered Dietitian 

Food Assistance Programs: 

• Connect families with local food assistance programs and resources including Fresno 
EOC’s food distribution program.  

• Assist families in applying for food benefits and accessing food pantries. 

• Distribute nutritious food packages to families in need.  

Community Partnerships: 

• Partner with local organizations to provide fresh produce and other nutritious food options.  

• Organize community events that focus on healthy eating and cooking demonstrations. 

Monitoring Progress 

Documentation and Tracking: 

• Keep records of educational sessions and the number of families accessing food 
assistance programs.  

• Track participation in community events and partnerships. 

Regular Staff Meetings and Supervision: 

• Hold monthly staff meetings to review progress and discuss challenges. 

• Provide regular supervision and support to staff involved in food assistance programs.  

Activity Updates: 

• Provide quarterly updates on food assistance activities and outcomes to program 
directors.  

Evaluation 

Outcome Measures: 

• Monitor the number of families accessing nutritious food and their reported improvements 
in diet via software such as WIC Wise. 

• Track the effectiveness of educational sessions and community partnerships. 

Program Review and Quality Assurance: 

• Conduct an annual review of the food assistance program to assess impact and identify 
improvements. 

• Include activities in the agency’s internal quality assurance plan and address deficiencies 

Page 60 of 233



51 | P a g e  

 

 

through quality improvement activities.  

Participant Feedback: 

• Collect feedback from participants to assess the effectiveness of the food assistance and 
educational support provided. 

Optional 

3 .  Select one community level need from Table 2: Priority Ranking Table or your agency’s 
most recent Community Needs Assessment and describe how your agency plans to 
implement, monitor progress, and evaluate the program designed to address the need. 
(CSBG Act Section 676(b)(12), Organizational Standard 4.2)  

Need: Community lacks access to healthcare 

Implementation 

Community Health Worker (CHW) Initiative:  

• Train and deploy CHWs who are familiar with the local community and can provide 
culturally competent support. CHWs can help patients navigate the healthcare system, 
make appointments, and understand medical conditions and treatments. 

o CHWs can also conduct outreach and education, helping individuals understand the 
available services, such as Medi-Cal, and connect them to healthcare providers. 

Community Supports Initiative:  

• Provide non-medical services to address social determinants of health (e.g., housing, food 
insecurity, transportation). For instance, the agency could offer free transportation to 
medical appointments or help families access medically tailored meals. 

Enhanced Care Management (ECM) Initiative:  

• Offer comprehensive care coordination for individuals with complex healthcare needs. 
Case managers can oversee the patient's care and help connect them to a wide range of 
healthcare services, from medical appointments to behavioral health and social support 
services. 

Monitoring Progress 

Electronic Health Record System (eClinicalWorks):  

• Fresno EOC will use eClinicalWorks (ECW) for clinical documentation and tracking of care 
coordination activities.   

• This system will help monitor the engagement activities carried out by CHWs, including 
referral data, interactions, and client outcomes.  

Cap 60 System:  

• This internal platform will monitor internal referrals and generate detailed reports on the 

Page 61 of 233



52 | P a g e  

 

 

services provided by CHWs.  

Evaluation 

Data Collection and Reporting:  

• Collect data through ECW and Cap 60.   

• This data will be used to develop structured reports and gather client feedback. 

• Utilize key indicators to track change and improvements in a client’s health and use of 
health services. 

Client Feedback:  

• Feedback from clients will be communicated back to Managed Care Plans (MCPs) to foster 
opportunities for ongoing improvement in the CHW program. 

• Client satisfaction data will be collected and reported to program directors and the agency 
board. 

Page 62 of 233



53 | P a g e  

 

 

Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances 
CSBG Act Section 676(b) 

 
Use of CSBG Funds Supporting Local Activities 
676(b)(1)(A): The state will assure “that funds made available through grant or allotment will be used 
– (A) to support activities that are designed to assist low-income families and individuals, including 
families and individuals receiving assistance under title IV of the Social Security Act, homeless 
families and individuals, migrant or seasonal farmworkers, and elderly low-income individuals and 
families, and a description of how such activities will enable the families and individuals-- 

a. to remove obstacles and solve problems that block the achievement of self- sufficiency 
(particularly for families and individuals who are attempting to transition off a State 
program carried out underpart A of title IV of the Social Security Act); 

b. to secure and retain meaningful employment; 
c. to attain an adequate education with particular attention toward improving literacy skills of 

the low-income families in the community, which may include family literacy initiatives; 
d. to make better use of available income; 
e. to obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living environment; 
f. to obtain emergency assistance through loans, grants, or other means to meet 

immediate and urgent individual and family needs; 
g. to achieve greater participation in the affairs of the communities involved, including the 

development of public and private grassroots 
h. partnerships with local law enforcement agencies, local housing authorities, private 

foundations, and other public and private partners to 
– 

i. document best practices based on successful grassroots intervention in urban 
areas, to develop methodologies for wide-spread replication; and 

ii. strengthen and improve relationships with local law enforcement agencies, which may 
include participation in activities such as neighborhood or community policing efforts; 

Needs of Youth 
676(b)(1)(B) The state will assure “that funds made available through grant or allotment will be used 
– (B) to address the needs of youth in low-income communities through youth development 
programs that support the primary role of the family, give priority to the prevention of youth problems 
and crime, and promote increased community coordination and collaboration in meeting the needs of 
youth, and support development and expansion of innovative community-based youth development 
programs that have demonstrated success in preventing or reducing youth crime, such as-- 

I. programs for the establishment of violence-free zones that would involve youth 
development and intervention models (such as models involving youth mediation, 
youth mentoring, life skills training, job creation, and entrepreneurship programs); and 

II. after-school childcare programs. 

Page 63 of 233



54 | P a g e  

 

 

Coordination of Other Programs 
676(b)(1)(C) The state will assure “that funds made available through grant or allotment will be used 
– (C) to make more effective use of, and to coordinate with, other programs related to the purposes of 
this subtitle (including state welfare reform efforts) 
Eligible Entity Service Delivery System 
676(b)(3)(A) Eligible entities will describe “the service delivery system, for services provided or 
coordinated with funds made available through grants made under 675C(a), targeted to low-income 
individuals and families in communities within the state; 
Eligible Entity Linkages – Approach to Filling Service Gaps 
676(b)(3)(B) Eligible entities will describe “how linkages will be developed to fill identified gaps in the 
services, through the provision of information, referrals, case management, and follow-up 
consultations.” 
Coordination of Eligible Entity Allocation 90 Percent Funds with Public/Private Resources 
676(b)(3)(C) Eligible entities will describe how funds made available through grants made under 
675C(a) will be coordinated with other public and private resources.” 
Eligible Entity Innovative Community and Neighborhood Initiatives, Including 
Fatherhood/Parental Responsibility 
676(b)(3)(D) Eligible entities will describe “how the local entity will use the funds [made available 
under 675C(a)] to support innovative community and neighborhood-based initiatives related to the 
purposes of this subtitle, which may include fatherhood initiatives and other initiatives with the goal of 
strengthening families and encouraging parenting.” 
Eligible Entity Emergency Food and Nutrition Services 
676(b)(4) An assurance “that eligible entities in the state will provide, on an emergency basis, for the 
provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foods, and related services, as may be necessary 
to counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among low-income individuals.” 
State and Eligible Entity Coordination/linkages and Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
Employment and Training Activities 
676(b)(5) An assurance “that the State and eligible entities in the State will coordinate, and establish 
linkages between, governmental and other social services programs to assure the effective delivery 
of such services, and [describe] how the State and the eligible entities will coordinate the provision of 
employment and training activities, as defined in section 3 of the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act, in the State and in communities with entities providing activities through statewide 
and local workforce development systems under such Act.” 
State Coordination/Linkages and Low-income Home Energy Assistance 
676(b)(6) “[A]n assurance that the State will ensure coordination between antipoverty programs in 
each community in the State, and ensure, where appropriate, that emergency energy crisis 
intervention programs under title XXVI (relating to low-income home energy assistance) are 
conducted in such community.” 

Page 64 of 233



55 | P a g e  

 

 

Community Organizations 
676(b)(9) An assurance “that the State and eligible entities in the state will, to the maximum extent 
possible, coordinate programs with and form partnerships with other organizations serving low- 
income residents of the communities and members of the groups served by the State, including 
religious organizations, charitable groups, and community organizations.” 
Eligible Entity Tripartite Board Representation 
676(b)(10) “[T]he State will require each eligible entity in the State to establish procedures under 
which a low-income individual, community organization, or religious organization, or representative 
of low-income individuals that considers its organization, or low-income individuals, to be 
inadequately represented on the board (or other mechanism) of the eligible entity to petition for 
adequate representation.” 
Eligible Entity Community Action Plans and Community Needs Assessments 
676(b)(11) “[A]n assurance that the State will secure from each eligible entity in the State, as a 
condition to receipt of funding by the entity through a community service block grant made under this 
subtitle for a program, a community action plan (which shall be submitted to the Secretary, at the 
request of the Secretary, with the State Plan) that includes a community needs assessment for the 
community serviced, which may be coordinated with the community needs assessment conducted for 
other programs.” 
State and Eligible Entity Performance Measurement: ROMA or Alternate System 
676(b)(12) “[A]n assurance that the State and all eligible entities in the State will, not later than fiscal 
year 2001, participate in the Results Oriented Management and Accountability System, another 
performance measure system for which the Secretary facilitated development pursuant to section 
678E(b), or an alternative system for measuring performance and results that meets the 
requirements of that section, and [describe] outcome measures to be used to measure eligible entity 
performance in promoting self-sufficiency, family stability, and community revitalization.” 
Fiscal Controls, Audits, and Withholding 
678D(a)(1)(B) An assurance that cost and accounting standards of the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) are maintained. 

Page 65 of 233



56 | P a g e  

 

 

State Assurances 
California Government Code Sections 12747(a), 12760, 12768 

 
 

For CAA, MSFW, NAI, and LPA Agencies 
 
California Government Code § 12747(a): Community action plans shall provide for the contingency of 
reduced federal funding. 

California Government Code § 12760: CSBG agencies funded under this article shall coordinate their 
plans and activities with other agencies funded under Articles 7 (commencing with Section 12765) 
and 8 (commencing with Section 12770) that serve any part of their communities, so that funds are 
not used to duplicate particular services to the same beneficiaries and plans and policies affecting all 
grantees under this chapter are shaped, to the extent possible, so as to be equitable and beneficial 
to all community agencies and the populations they serve. 
 
 

For MSFW Agencies Only 
California Government Code § 12768: Migrant and Seasonal Farmworker (MSFW) entities funded by 
the department shall coordinate their plans and activities with other agencies funded by the 
department to avoid duplication of services and to maximize services for all eligible beneficiaries. 
 

Page 66 of 233

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.&chapter=9.&article=5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=12760.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=12768.&lawCode=GOV


57 | P a g e  

 

 

Organizational Standards 
 
 

Category One: Consumer Input and Involvement 
 
Standard 1.1 The organization/department demonstrates low-income individuals’ participation in its 
activities. 

Standard 1.2 The organization/department analyzes information collected directly from low-income 
individuals as part of the community assessment. 

 

Category Two: Community Engagement 
 
Standard 2.1 The organization/department has documented or demonstrated partnerships across the 
community, for specifically identified purposes; partnerships include other anti-poverty organizations 
in the area. 

Standard 2.2 The organization/department utilizes information gathered from key sectors of the 
community in assessing needs and resources, during the community assessment process or other 
times. These sectors would include at minimum: community-based organizations, faith-based 
organizations, private sector, public sector, and educational institutions. 

 
Category Three: Community Assessment 

 
Standard 3.1 (Private) Organization conducted a community assessment and issued a report within 
the past 3 years. 

Standard 3.1 (Public) The department conducted or was engaged in a community assessment and 
issued a report within the past 3-year period, if no other report exists. 

Standard 3.2 As part of the community assessment, the organization/department collects and 
includes current data specific to poverty and its prevalence related to gender, age, and race/ethnicity 
for their service area(s). 

Standard 3.3 The organization/department collects and analyzes both qualitative and quantitative 
data on its geographic service area(s) in the community assessment. 

Standard 3.4 The community assessment includes key findings on the causes and conditions of 
poverty and the needs of the communities assessed. 

Standard 3.5 The governing board or tripartite board/advisory body formally accepts the completed 
community assessment. 

 

Page 67 of 233



58 | P a g e  

 

 

Category Four: Organizational Leadership 

Standard 4.2 The organization’s/department’s Community Action Plan is outcome-based, anti- poverty 
focused, and ties directly to the community assessment. 

Standard 4.3 The organization’s/department’s Community Action Plan and strategic plan document 
the continuous use of the full Results Oriented Management and Accountability (ROMA) cycle or 
comparable system (assessment, planning, implementation, achievement of results, and evaluation). 
In addition, the organization documents having used the services of a ROMA-certified trainer (or 
equivalent) to assist in implementation. 
 

  

Page 68 of 233



59 | P a g e  

 

 

Part III: Appendices 
Please complete the table below by entering the title of the document and its assigned appendix letter. 
Agencies must provide a copy of the Notice(s) of Public Hearing, the Low-Income Testimony and the 
Agency’s Response document, and a copy of the most recent community needs assessment as 
appendices A, B, and C, respectively. Other appendices as necessary are encouraged. All 
appendices should be labeled as an appendix (e.g., Appendix A: Notice of Public Hearing) or 
separated by divider sheets and submitted with the CAP. 

 
 

Document Title Appendix 
Location 

Notice of Public Hearing A 

Low-Income Testimony and Agency’s Response B 

Community Needs Assessment C 

Community Needs Assessment Partner Survey D 

Community Needs Assessment Community Survey E 

Public Hearing Presentation F 

Public Hearing Sign-In Sheet G 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 
  

Page 69 of 233



60 | P a g e  

 

 

Appendix A 
 
 
  

Page 70 of 233



61 | P a g e  

 

 

 

  

Page 71 of 233



62 | P a g e  

 

 

Appendix B 
  

Page 72 of 233



63 | P a g e  

 

 

Community Member #1 (In-person):  
 
“Just one thing that I think would be a really good add is, along with unemployment, really having a metric 
for underemployment. I think that one of the big issues is that relatively the unemployment rate isn't 
necessarily astronomical, but a lot of people are employed and still not making a livable wage. So there's a 
distinct difference between being employed and being employed in a spot that creates the ability to 
generate wealth and be sustained.  
I will add the other thing is also potentially, also within that, figuring out ways to align some of the 
employment work. Based on the needs of the market as well. I think sometimes there is a tendency to train 
folks on things that we know that we've done before, but there may not be a lot of jobs in that particular 
area. So, like that diversification, maybe something to consider and also then advocating with employers 
about like what are the needs that they have and kind of aligning that with some of the job training.” 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your input! As of March 2024, underemployment is estimated to be 7.3% 
which would be over 34,000 workers if applied to Fresno County. The agency currently provides skills 
training and supports job placement. Another initiative that the agency is working on is expanding our 
digital literacy and access program. The intention is to help all ages increase their digital skills to be more 
successful in applying to jobs, improve computer skills for different types of work beyond traditional trade 
skill jobs, and support the navigation of other services mostly accessible online. 
 
Community Member #2: 
Name: Jane Doe 
Are you low income? Yes 
Do you live in Fresno County? Yes 
Your feedback on the Draft Community Action Plan: 
This plan outlines targeted strategies for gender, age, and race/ethnicity-based poverty solutions, but a 
critical question remains: Will these "solutions" be co-authored with the very populations and 
demographics they aim to serve? Too often, well-intended strategies are designed behind closed doors, 
with little to no direct collaboration with the people facing these challenges daily. What equitable 
participatory frameworks will Fresno EOC implement to ensure continuous (not just onetime) community 
involvement in shaping these strategies? And how frequently? 
Were your needs addressed in the Draft Community Action Plan? No 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your feedback! The section for gender, age, and race/ethnicity is an 
important part of the plan but does not encompass the total plan strategies. For instance, we can gather 
that a community member self identifies as a woman, but it does not determine if she is a mother, single 
mother, going to school, etc. In this plan, under section “Causes and Conditions of Poverty”, the agency 
provides a breakdown of the events that took place to involve the community in our planning process. In 
addition, several of our programs and one third of our board are governed by community appointed 
representatives. Your feedback sparked a conversation about conducting some innovative community 
events that may shape how we collect additional community input. 
 
Community Member #3: 
Name: Robin Ceja 
Are you low income? Yes 
Do you live in Fresno County? Yes 

Page 73 of 233



64 | P a g e  

 

 

Your feedback on the Draft Community Action Plan: 
I need help with pge 2437 w garland ave fresno ca 93705 
Were your needs addressed in the Draft Community Action Plan? Yes 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your feedback. Our LIHEAP Director has been made aware of your need. 
Thank you for providing your information. 
 
Community Member #4: 
Name: A Hillis 
Are you low income? No 
Do you live in Fresno County? Yes 
Your feedback on the Draft Community Action Plan: 
When mentioning Adverse Early Childhood Experiences and Family Challenges (page14), only child abuse 
is mentioned, when we know that ACES are more than just that. It involves household challenges, too, 
which can create environments where abuse arises. Household challenges like mental illness, 
incarceration, divorce or separation, substance use/abuse, food insecurities, etc. It makes sense that we 
tie all of the factors together so to not blame our community for being overlooked and underserved. Page 
21-early/head start, but it is being cut short? Also, this feedback form is too short. 
Were your needs addressed in the Draft Community Action Plan? Yes 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your feedback. Our community action plan is intended to provide insight 
into leading causes of issues in our community. While the plan focused on the Adverse Early Childhood 
Experiences (ACES) pertaining to child abuse, additional impacts to children were identified in our food 
insecurity, and unstable housing sections. Due to your feedback, the agency will review our community 
needs assessment to incorporate any additional items pertaining to ACES. 
 
Community Member #5: 
Name: Cindy Hernandez 
Are you low income? No 
Do you live in Fresno County? Yes 
Your feedback on the Draft Community Action Plan: 
Although great outline of programs and services that are needed in the community, it dawns on me that a 
great systems impact can be made if the ST Plan also includes ways that EOC can be more intentional on 
system change through policy and advocacy. Poverty is a system issue and programming can only go so far 
to address those symptom causes and systems approach is also needed. Coalition building with other 
community CBOs, public, & private entities is need to make long-term impact. How can EOC leverage its 
data, programs for advocacy & policy change to fix the systemic issue that is poverty. 
Were your needs addressed in the Draft Community Action Plan? No 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your feedback! Our agency attends advocacy events throughout the year 
such as Legislative Day and our programs attend specific advocacy events that pertain to their focus areas. 
With your feedback, we have decided to shine a light on some of our advocacy during our Strategic Plan 
Third Year Program Portfolios which will allow us to also take a deeper dive into our advocacy efforts. 
 

Page 74 of 233



65 | P a g e  

 

 

Community Member #6: 
Name: Joe Martinez 
Are you low income? Yes 
Do you live in Fresno County? Yes 
Your feedback on the Draft Community Action Plan: 
How much funding did EOC receive for CSD funded activities? How many clients were served under CSD 
funds? Did all CSD funded programs meet their requirements or set goals? CSD allows for flexibility, how 
did this help EOC funded programs? How did EOC decide which of their programs would receive CSD 
funding? 
Were your needs addressed in the Draft Community Action Plan? Yes 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your feedback! Our agency receives a Community Service Block Grant 
(CSBG) allocation from the state every year as we are a designated community action agency and are 
required to meet certain guidelines to remain in good standing. Our CSBG allocations, budget, and agency 
annual report outcomes are required to be approved by our tripartite board and specific dollar amounts 
can be found on our website www.fresnoeoc.org under our board meeting minutes. The budget is in a 
format that aligns the spending with our strategic plan goals that are also aligned with our most recently 
approved community needs assessment. 
 
Community Member #6: 
Name: Anthony Gonzales 
Are you low income? Yes 
Do you live in Fresno County? Yes 
Your feedback on the Draft Community Action Plan: 
I'm on unemployment i very behind on bills  
Were your needs addressed in the Draft Community Action Plan? Yes 
 
Agency Response: Thank you for your feedback. We will attempt to locate you in our system. If you read 
this response, please contact our agency at 559-263-1057. 
 

Page 75 of 233

http://www.fresnoeoc.org/


66 | P a g e  

 

 

Appendix C 
 
  

Page 76 of 233



67 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 77 of 233



68 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 78 of 233



69 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 79 of 233



70 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 80 of 233



71 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 81 of 233



72 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 82 of 233



73 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 83 of 233



74 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 84 of 233



75 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 85 of 233



76 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 86 of 233



77 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 87 of 233



78 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 88 of 233



79 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 89 of 233



80 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 90 of 233



81 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 91 of 233



82 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 92 of 233



83 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 93 of 233



84 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 94 of 233



85 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 95 of 233



86 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 96 of 233



87 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 97 of 233



88 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 98 of 233



89 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 99 of 233



90 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 100 of 233



91 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 101 of 233



92 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 102 of 233



93 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 103 of 233



94 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 104 of 233



95 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 105 of 233



96 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 106 of 233



97 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 107 of 233



98 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 108 of 233



99 | P a g e  

 

 

Page 109 of 233



100 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 110 of 233



101 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 111 of 233



102 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 112 of 233



103 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 113 of 233



104 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 114 of 233



105 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 115 of 233



106 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 116 of 233



107 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 117 of 233



108 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 118 of 233



109 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 119 of 233



110 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 120 of 233



111 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 121 of 233



112 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 122 of 233



113 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 123 of 233



114 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 124 of 233



115 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 125 of 233



116 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 126 of 233



117 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 127 of 233



118 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 128 of 233



119 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 129 of 233



120 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 130 of 233



121 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 131 of 233



122 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 132 of 233



123 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 133 of 233



124 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 134 of 233



125 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 135 of 233



126 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 136 of 233



127 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 137 of 233



128 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 138 of 233



129 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 139 of 233



130 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 140 of 233



131 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 141 of 233



132 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 142 of 233



133 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 143 of 233



134 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 144 of 233



135 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 145 of 233



136 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 146 of 233



137 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 147 of 233



138 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 148 of 233



139 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 149 of 233



140 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 150 of 233



141 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 151 of 233



142 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 152 of 233



143 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 153 of 233



144 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 154 of 233



145 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 155 of 233



146 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 156 of 233



147 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 157 of 233



148 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 158 of 233



149 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 159 of 233



150 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 160 of 233



151 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 161 of 233



152 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 162 of 233



153 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 163 of 233



154 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 164 of 233



155 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 165 of 233



156 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 166 of 233



157 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 167 of 233



158 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 168 of 233



159 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 169 of 233



160 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 170 of 233



161 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 171 of 233



162 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 172 of 233



163 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 173 of 233



164 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 174 of 233



165 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 175 of 233



166 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 176 of 233



167 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 177 of 233



168 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 178 of 233



169 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 179 of 233



170 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 180 of 233



171 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 181 of 233



172 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 182 of 233



173 | P a g 
  

 

 
 

Page 183 of 233



174 | P a g 
  

 

 

Appendix D 
 

Page 184 of 233



175 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 185 of 233



176 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 186 of 233



177 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 187 of 233



178 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 188 of 233



179 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 189 of 233



180 | P a g 
  

 

 
  

Page 190 of 233



181 | P a g 
  

 

 

 

Appendix E 
 

Page 191 of 233



182 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 192 of 233



183 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 193 of 233



184 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 194 of 233



185 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 195 of 233



186 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 196 of 233



187 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 197 of 233



188 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 198 of 233



189 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 199 of 233



190 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 200 of 233



191 | P a g 
  

 

 
  

Page 201 of 233



192 | P a g 
  

 

 

 

Appendix F 
 

Page 202 of 233



193 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 203 of 233



194 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 204 of 233



195 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 205 of 233



196 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 206 of 233



197 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 207 of 233



198 | P a g 
  

 

 

Page 208 of 233



199 | P a g 
  

 

 

  

Page 209 of 233



200 | P a g 
  

 

 

 

Appendix G

Page 210 of 233



201 | P a g 
  

 

 
 

Page 211 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

 
Date: April 16, 2025 Program: Women, Infants & Children 

Agenda Item #: 6 Director: Annette Thornton 

Subject: WIC Funding Award Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

 

Recommended Action 

Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee acceptance for full Board consideration of 
the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) funding award to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) in the amount of $23,493,890 over a three-year term from October 1, 2025, to September 
30, 2028.  

Background 

On March 5, 2025, Fresno EOC WIC received a funding award letter from CDPH WIC Division for 
Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2026 – 2028. Funding description and yearly amounts are listed in the 
table below. 

Description of Funding FFY 2026 
(Year 1) 

FFY 2027 
(Year 2) 

FFY 2028 
(Year 3) 

Total Funding 
FFY 2026-2028 

Nutrition Services and 
Administration (NSA) Base 

$7,309,940 
 

$7,309,940 
 

$7,309,940 
 

$21,929,820 

NSA Special Project $50,652 
 

$46,486 
 

$46,486 
 

$143,624 

Farmers Market Nutrition 
Program (FMNP) 

$1,150 
 

$1,150 
 

$1,150 
 

$3450 

Breastfeeding Peer 
Counseling (BFPC) Program 

$472,332 
 

$472,332 
 

$472,332 
 

$1,416,996 

Annual Funding  $7,834,074 $7,829,908 $7,829,908 $23,493,890 

NSA Base Funding is determined by caseload assignment, which is 28,600 participants. This is an 
increase of 280 participants compared to our current assignment. Funds are used for operational 
costs to serve WIC participants, including personnel and indirect costs.  

NSA Special Project Funding covers expenses for Local Vendor Liaison job duties and one-time 
funds for two employees serving on State WIC Committees during FFY 2026. 

Page 212 of 233



 

 

FMNP funds are for administrative costs to distribute farmers market benefits. 

BFPC funds cover the personnel costs of Breastfeeding Peer Counselors.    

The signed contract was submitted to CDPH WIC on April 11, 2025.  

Fiscal Impact 

Fresno EOC will receive the full WIC allocation for FFY 2026–2028, ensuring that low-income 
families in Fresno County continue to have access to essential supplemental nutrition. The 
proposed budget reflects a $21,423 increase over FFY 2025.   

  
 

 

Page 213 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

Date: April 16, 2025  Program: Program Planning & Development   

Agenda Item #: 7 Director: Ana Medina   

Subject: Funding Proposals for Amounts 
Under $150,000 

Officer: Brian Angus   

 
Recommended Action 
 
Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee approval for full Board consideration of the 
following grant application totaling less than $150,000.  

Background 
 
 Name  Funder  Amount  Program  
A.  Anthem 2025 Food 

Insecurity Grants 
 
 

Anthem Blue Cross 
 
 

 $10,000  Food Services - Food 
Distribution Program  
 
 
 

Funding will support current agency initiatives to combat food insecurity such as purchasing food, 
equipment to prepare food, capital costs, and staffing cost to prepare and deliver food.   

 

 

Page 214 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

Date: April 16, 2025  Program: Program Planning & Development   

Agenda Item #: 8 Director: Ana Medina   

Subject: Funding Proposals for Amounts 
Under $150,000 

Officer: Brian Angus   

 
Recommended Action 
 
Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee ratification for full Board consideration of 
the following grant applications, each totaling less than $150,000.  

Background 
 
 Name  Funder  Amount  Program  
A.  Charitable Grant 

Application for the Wipfli 
Foundation - 2025  
 

Wipfli Foundation 
 

$25,000 Food Services – Food 
Distribution Program  

Funding supports social services and education initiatives in locations where Wipfli operates.    

B.  Kaiser Permanente 
Food & Nutrition 
Security Grant  
 

Kaiser Permanente 
 

$25,000 Food Services – Food 
Distribution Program  

 Funding to support strengthening current Food Distribution services.  

C.  Fansler Foundation 
 

Fansler Foundation 
 

$50,000  Sanctuary & Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services  
 

Funding will benefit developmentally challenged or socioeconomically disadvantaged children (ages 0 
to 18) in the Fresno, Kings, Tulare, Merced, Madera, or Mariposa Counties. 
D.  Basic Needs and 

Income Creation - RFP  
 

Bank of America 
Charitable Foundation  
 

 $40,000 Training and 
Employment   
 
 

Funding will provide support for the Internship Program for students ages 17 to 26 with a high school 
diploma or equivalent.  

 

Page 215 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

 
Date: April 16, 2025   Program: Sanctuary and Support Services 

Agenda Item #: 9 Director: Misty Gattie-Blanco 

Subject: Fresno County Human Trafficking 
Support Services Grant  

Officer: Sherry Neil  

 

Recommended Action 

Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee ratification for full Board consideration of 
the Human Trafficking Support Services grant application to the County of Fresno in the amount of 
$1,250,000 over a five-year project period from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2030. 

Background 

Since 2009, Fresno EOC has been running the Central Valley Against Human Trafficking (CVAHT) 
program, providing support to over 2,100 survivors of human trafficking, including more than 500 
minors. 

The County of Fresno is seeking an organization interested in forming a close partnership with the 
Fresno County Department of Social Services (DSS) Child Welfare Services Division. This 
collaborative program aims to support up to 100 at-risk youth and 50 identified victims of human 
trafficking each year within Fresno County. Additionally, the program will offer specialized training 
on human trafficking to DSS personnel. 

The grant application was submitted on April 9, 2025.  

Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will be used to provide comprehensive services, covering personnel expenses, 
operational and supportive service costs, as well as indirect costs.  

  

Page 216 of 233



 

 

 

GRANT
PROJECT SALARIES FTE AMOUNT

Anti-Human Trafficking Case Manager/Advocate 1.00 268,379$     
Human Trafficking Coordinator 1.00 315,414$     
FRINGE BENEFITS 311,118$     

TOTAL PROJECT SALARIES 894,911$     
PROGRAM EXPENSES

PROJECT STAFF TRAVEL 12,600$       
EQUIPMENT 4,000$         
SUPPLIES 15,000$       
CONTRACTUAL & CONSULTANT SERVICES -$             
OTHER COSTS* 75,760$       
PARTICIPANT COSTS 131,004$     

INDIRECT COSTS 116,725$     

TOTAL BUDGET 1,250,000$ 

*Other 
Costs 

Office Rent ($58,800); Leased Copier ($3,000); Insurance 
($3,600); Staff Clearance ($360); Facilitator Training 
($1,000); and Telecommunication ($9,000)

Sanctuary and Support Services - CVAHT
7/1/25 - 6/30/30

$1,250,000

Fresno County Human Trafficking Supportive Services 

Page 217 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

 
Date: April 16, 2025   Program: Sanctuary and Support Services 

Agenda Item #: 10 Director: Misty Gattie-Blanco 

Subject: Housing and Homelessness 
Incentive Program    

Officer: Sherry Neil  

 

Recommended Action 

Interim Chief Executive Officer recommends Committee ratification for full Board consideration to 
enter into a contract agreement with CalViva and Health Net and approval to enter into a contract 
agreement with Kaiser Permanente for the Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) in 
the amount of $305,948 over a 24-month project period from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2027.  

Background 

HHIP is an incentive program that aims to improve health outcomes and access to whole care 
services by addressing housing insecurity and instability as a social determinant of health for Medi-
Cal members. The goals of HHIP are to:  

1. Reduce and prevent homelessness; and,  
2. Ensure that Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) develop the necessary capacity and 

partnerships to connect their members to needed housing services. 

As a long-standing member of the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care (FMCoC) and primary youth 
serving provider, Fresno EOC will use these funds to support one Lived Experience Liaison to work 
directly with Lived Experience experts and develop and assist with a Youth Action Board. Funds will 
also be used to directly support the experts and youth with stipends.  

Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will support personnel and stipends for Lived Experience experts. Cal Viva and Health 
Net together will fund $206,890 and Kaiser Permanente will fund $99,058. 
 
The Kaiser Permanente contract is currently pending. It has been incorporated into the following 
budget, as all Managed Care Plans (MCPs) funding is accounted for within the budgets of the 
CalViva and Health Net contract.  
 

Page 218 of 233



 

 

 
 
 

GRANT
PROJECT SALARIES FTE AMOUNT

Lived Experience Liaison 1.00 106,745$     
0 0.00 -$            

FRINGE BENEFITS 45,484$       
TOTAL PROJECT SALARIES 152,229$     
PROGRAM EXPENSES

PROJECT STAFF TRAVEL -$            
EQUIPMENT -$            
SUPPLIES -$            
CONTRACTUAL & CONSULTANT SERVICES -$            
OTHER COSTS* 1,650$        
PARTICIPANT COSTS 136,220$     

INDIRECT COSTS 15,849$       

TOTAL BUDGET 305,948$     

*Other 
Costs 

Cell Phone Stipend ($1,050) and Liability Insurance ($600)

Sanctuary and Support Services
7/1/25 - 6/30/27

$305,948

Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program 

Page 219 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

 
Date: April 16, 2025 Program: Food Services 

Agenda Item #: 11 Director: Jon Escobar 

Subject: Chick-fil-A True Inspiration Awards Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

 
Recommended Action 
 
The information presented below is intended to keep the Board apprised of the Chick-fil-A True 
Inspiration Awards Grant Program.  

 
Background 

The Chick-fil-A True Inspiration Awards is an annual grant program that supports nonprofit 
organizations in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, and Singapore across five 
categories: Caring for People, Caring through Food, Caring for Communities and Caring for our 
Planet, which supports organizations nominated by local Chick-fil-A Operators. The program 
recognizes organizations that align with Chick-fil-A’s corporate social responsibility mission to uplift 
youth and underserved communities.  

Food Services intends to apply under the "Caring through Food" category for initiatives aimed at 
combating hunger and food insecurity among children and their families. This funding opportunity 
aligns with two of the agency's six strategic focus areas: health and wellness and food insecurity. 
The funding will enable Food Services to enhance ongoing community-based rapid response 
initiatives to effectively address food insecurity in Fresno County. 

The grant application is due on May 1, 2025.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Food Services seeks funding to enhance the Free and Healthy Meals for Kids program by replacing 
the non-operational green Mobile Food Bus. This will help maintain food access for rural and urban 
children during school breaks. We are requesting a total of $200,000 for a one-year project period 
from January 1, 2026, to December 31, 2026. No match is required.  
 
Conclusion 

The Chick-fil-A True Inspiration Awards present a valuable opportunity for Food Services to secure 
essential funding aimed at addressing the critical issue of hunger and food insecurity among 
children and their families in Fresno County.  

Page 220 of 233



 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Date: April 16, 2025 Program: Training and Employment 

Agenda Item #: 12 Director: Patrick Turner 

Subject: Urban East Youth Services 
Monitoring  

Officer: Sherry Neil 

 

Recommended Action 

The information presented below is intended to keep the Committee apprised of the Fresno 
Regional Workforce Development Board (FRWDB) program monitoring visit. 

Background 

On March 31, 2025, the FRWDB issued a final determination letter to Fresno EOC regarding Program 
Year (PY) 2024-2025 Urban East Youth Services, Agreement Number 310-301. This letter served to 
communicate that three of eight files submitted and reviewed by the FRWDB monitoring department 
did not have sufficient documentation resulting in repayment of unbillable costs to the FRWDB in the 
amount of $5,830.19.     
 
The FRWDB monitoring team reviewed all of our responses and corrective action plan for each of 
the other minor findings and found it acceptable to close all of them. An additional 80 eligibility files 
were reviewed for program year 2024-25 and zero files were found to be ineligible.   

Fiscal Impact 

Fresno EOC sent a payment of $5,830.19 to FRWDB on March 14, 2025, in settlement of the 
disallowed costs, paid by non-federal funds. The initial funds were used to pay the wages of 
program participants, who were entering the workforce for the first time through the work 
experience program. However, since the FRWDB determined these youth ineligible, Fresno EOC was 
required to reimburse those wages.   
    
Conclusion 

In response to the programmatic monitoring findings and eligibility issues, program managers have 
been retraining all workforce staff, implementing controls to ensure component compliance. We are 
confident that our corrective action plan is addressing the issues at hand, and we anticipate being 
in full compliance by the next monitoring cycle in November 2025.   

Page 221 of 233



Fresno Regional WDB

Workforce
Connection

Chair
Edgar Blunt

First Vice Chair
Stephen Avila

Second Vice Chair
Alisha Morgan

Board Members
Shayn Anderson
Lenora Lacy Barnes
Alysia Banner
Rodney Branch
Luis Chavez
Douglas Dart
Christina Garza
Carole Goldsmith
Jeffrey Hensley
Kurt Madden
Tyler Maxwell
Wyatt Meadows
Terry Metters, Jr.
Scott Miller
Dennis Montalbano
Joe Olivares
Chuck Riojas
Vasili Sotiropulos
Sandra Vicente
Lydia Zabrycki
Chris Zeitz

Executive Director
Blake Konczal

March 31, 2025

Brian T. Angus
Intermin CEO
1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 300
Fresno, CA 93721

Re: Final Determination
Program Monitoring Review
Program Year 2024-2025
Agreement Number: 310-301
Urban East Youth Services

Dear Mr. Angus:

This letter is to inform you of the results of the Fresno Regional Workforce
Development Board's (FRWDB's) review of Fresno Economic
Opportunities Commission (FEOC's) agreement for the program period of
July 1, 2024, to the present.

Our determination is based on the information provided in FEOC's
response dated March 14, 2025, to our Initial Determination Letter dated
February 27, 2025.

MINOR FINDINGS:

1. Non-Adherence to Operational Directive (OD) #09-17, Revision F,
Measurable Skill Gain (This is a repeat findinci from Proyram Year
(PY) 23-24)

Six (6) or 15% of the 40 files were missing or had incorrect documentation
to show a participant is making progress. In some cases, the Measurable
Skill Gain was not recorded in CalJOBS.

Agency Response:

FEOC concurs with this finding. The timeframe between the approval of
our corrective action plan and the implementation of our training and the
next monitoring review was only four months. Given our workload, including
maintaining current enrollments and activities, staff prioritized new files
while also reviewing existing files for corrections. With exited files and
current files, there are a large number of files to review. Due to these
constraints, we were unable to fully review and correct all files before the
monitoring resumed.

Further, during this period, our program experienced staff transitions,
including the loss of our Program Coordinator and the hiring of a new
Quality Assurance Analyst - both key roles responsible for file reviews.

Connecting for Success

www. workforce-connection. corn

A proud partner of America's Job Center of California5" nehvork.Page 222 of 233



Brian T. Angus
March 31, 2025
Page Two

While training was conducted in July and monitoring resumed in November,
corrections to older files remain ongoing.

Agency Corrective Action Plan:

To address this issue, FEOC conducted a comprehensive staff training on
07/29/24, enhanced its internal monitoring process, and developed a
reporting tool for tracking challenges. Following the implementation of
these measures, staff were instructed to adhere to the updated procedures.

FEOC remains committed to ensuring compliance and improving
documentation practices to prevent future findings. We will continue to
implement our enhanced processes to strengthen oversight, ensure
accurate reporting, and support staff in maintaining compliance moving
forward.

FRWDB Final Determination:

FRWDB has reviewed your response and corrective action plan and find it
acceptable to close this finding.

2. Non-Adherence to OD #14-21, Youth Job Ready Preparation
Process

Four (4) or ten percent (10%) of the 40 files did not become ready within
the appropriate timeframe. In some cases, participant files were missing
waivers.

Agency Response:

FEOC concurs with this finding. To address the issue, FEOC has
implemented a new procedure to ensure participants complete the job-
ready preparation process within the appropriate timeframe.

Aaency Corrective Action Plan:

Our Quality Assurance (QA) Team has developed a tracking sheet that
records the completion date of WorkKeys for each participant, along with
an estimated deadline for completing the job - ready preparation process.
This tracking tool will be reviewed weekly during staff meetings to ensure
timely follow-ups and compliance. Additionally, the QA Team and Project
Coordinator will conduct monthly reviews to monitor progress and address
any discrepancies.

FEOC remains committed to maintain compliance and improving our
tracking and monitoring processes to prevent future occurrences.

Page 223 of 233



Brian T. Angus
March 31, 2025
Page Three

FRWDB Final Determination:

FRWDB has reviewed your response and corrective action plan and find it
acceptable to close this finding.

3. Non-Adherence to OD #05-21 , WIOA Young Adult Services Digital
Eliflibility Process

Three (3) or eight percent (8%) of the 40 files did not provide detailed case
notes of documents that were deleted from CalJOBS.

Agency Response:

FEOC concurs with this finding. Staff no longer have the ability to delete
documents due to restrictions set by CalJOBS administration. However,
during the exit interview, staff met with Program Monitor and received
clarification on the level of detail required in case notes when documents
are removed. The three (3) files identified have been corrected.

Aciency Corrective Action Plan:

Moving forward staff will continue reviewing and updating existing files
where deletions occurred to ensure that all necessary documentation is
properly recorded, FEOC remains committed to maintaining compliance
and improving documentation accuracy.

FRWDB Final Determination:

FRWDB has reviewed your response and corrective action plan and find it
acceptable to close this finding.

FINDINGS:

1. Non-Adherence to OD #03-16, Revision 0, Youna Adult Services
Codes (This is a repeat from PY 23-24)

Nineteen (19) or 48% of the 40 files did not open service codes for various
service activities.

Agency Response:

FEOC concurs with this finding. Our team initially misinterpreted OD #03 -
16 regarding the use of service codes 433, believing it served as an
umbrella code for mock interviews and checklists and only needed to be
opened once. Upon further review, FEOC identified this issue on 12/10/24,
and made necessary process changes.

Page 224 of 233



Brian T. Angus
March 31, 2025
Page Four

Aflencv Corrective Action Plan:

Prior to the exit interview, staff received direction to address this concern,
and they continue to case note previous occurrences where the code was
not opened.

FRWDB Final Determination:

FRWDB has reviewed your response and corrective action plan and find it
acceptable to close this finding.

2. Non-Adherence to OD #13-15, WIOA Youth Proaram Flow (In
School Youth 14-21 and Out of School Youth 16-18) and OD #11-
17 WIOA Youth Program Flow (Out of Schopl18-24) (This is a
repeat from PY 23-24)

Twenty-four (24) or 60% of the 40 files are not proceeding through the
program flow efficiently. Service codes 413, 434 and 435 are being used
frequently to keep the participants in the program.

Aflency Response:

FEOC concurs with this finding. To address this issue, FEOC conducted a
training on 07/25/24, and implemented new processes to ensure
participants move through the program as intended.

Aflency Corrective Action Plan:

Since the training, staff have been consistently reviewing older files to
identify participants who should be exited. Nine (9) participants were
already slated for closure and have since been exited. The remainder will
be exited by the next quarter.

Additionally, FEOC is actively tracking the total number of participants
exited since 07/25/24 to monitor progress and ensure compliance. We
have exited a total of 92 files through the program year from which a large
number have been participants that were inactive.

FRWDB Final Determination:

FRWDB has reviewed your response and corrective action plan and find it
acceptable to close this finding.

Page 225 of 233



3.

Brian T. Angus
March 31, 2025
Page Five

Non-Adherence to OD #03-15, Revision C, Fresno County Title I
Eliflibilitv Technical Assistance Guide (TAG) (This is a repeat from
PY 23-24)

Of the initial eight (8) files listed in the chart below, FEOC provided
documentation for all eight (8) files. Of these, three (3) did not have
sufficient documentation. Below are the results showing the unbillable cost
amount of $5,830.19.

STATE ID

1005517150
1005748593
1005835681
1005441971
1005890304
1005837495
1004983870
1005122488
8 FILES

DOCUMENTS
ACCEPTED

No
Yes
Yes

No
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

REASON

Insufficient documentation

Accepted
Accepted
Insufficient documentation
Accepted
Insufficient documentation

Accepted
Accepted
TOTAL AMOUNT:

AMOUNT OF
DISALLOWED
COSTS
$0
$0
$0
$2,373.47

$0
$3,456.72

$0
$0
$5,830.19

Agency Response:

FEOC concurs with this finding. The three (3) eligibility determinations that
resulted in disallowed costs were created by former staff who are no longer
with the organization and utilized the previous incorrect process. Previous
eligibility findings have been closed, and new processes have been
implemented to prevent future occurrences.

Aflency Corrective Action Plan:

To strengthen compliance, FEOC had conducted eligibility training for new
staff and established a Quality Assurance team to review eligibility files and
ensure adherence to program requirements. Additionally, the Program
Monitor stated that she conducted a review of 80 additional files, on top of
the original 40 that were pulled, all of which were processed under our new
procedures. The review confirmed that no errors were found,
demonstrating the effectiveness of our updated processes. We continue to
strive to improve and are ensuring that files are brought up to standard.

FRWDB Final Determination:
FRWDB received the check on March 14, 2025, in settlement of the
disallowed costs. In addition, FRWDB has reviewed your response and
corrective action plan and find it acceptable to close this finding.

Page 226 of 233



Brian T. Angus
March 31, 2025
Page Six

Please extend our appreciation to your staff for their cooperation and
assistance during our review. If you have any questions pertaining to this
matter, please contact Rebecca Moncivais, FRWDB Monitoring Manager
at rmoncivais(a).workforce-connection.com

Regards,

bk:rg

Blake Konczal
Executive Director

Patrick Turner
Sherry Neil
Phyllis Stogbauer
Cheryl Beierschmitt
Va Xiong
FRWDB Monitoring Department

Page 227 of 233



 

 

 

 

 
PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING  

Date: April 16, 2025  Program: Program Planning & Development 

Agenda Item #: 13 Director: Ana Medina  

Subject: Grant Tracker  Officer: Brian Angus  
 
Recommended Action 
 
The information presented in the Grant Tracker is intended to keep the Committee apprised of 
program grant activity.  
 
The grants highlighted on the grant tracker are updates from the Grant Tracker presented to the full 
Board on March 17, 2025.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 228 of 233



Fresno EOC 
Grant Tracker

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

Amount 
Awarded

9/10/2024

Transit Systems EnergIIZE EV Jump Start 
Year 3

EnergIIZE Commercial 
Vehicles (California Energy 
Commission)

$750,000

Funding for commercial fleets, site owners, or 
others who seek to deploy charging infrastructure 
for Medium-Duty and Heavy-Duty (MDHD) electric 
vehicles (EVs). 8/5/2024 3/24/2025 $750,000

1/24/2025

Health Services - Community 
Health Clinic 

FUSD Comprehensive Sexual 
Health Education Program 
Program  

Fresno Unified School 
District (FUSD) 

$1,152,946

Health Services provides Comprehensive Sexual 
Health Education, in accordance with the 
mandatory requirement set forth by the California 
Healthy Youth Act (CHYA). Health Services staff is 
responsible for implementing five out of the 
fourteen lessons from the Positive Prevention 
PLUS (PPP) curriculum to seventh and ninth-grade 
students across 18 middle schools in the fall 
semester and 15 high schools/specialty schools in 
the spring semester  3/12/2025 3/13/2025 $1,152,946

7/26/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

City of Fresno Homeless 
Youth Services 

City of Fresno 

$2,134,500

Funding will support Bridge Housing to young 
adults. 

8/5/2024 9/16/2024 $395,332

9/12/2024

Energy Services Equitable Building 
Decarbonization Direct 
Install Program- Central 
Region 

Center for Sustainable 
Energy (CSE) 

$565,676

The Equitable Building Decarbonization Program 
seeks to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions by 
implementing energy-efficient and electrification 
measures in residential buildings across 
underserved and disadvantaged communities in 
Central California. Fresno EOC is a sub-contractor 
for the project awarded to Center for Sustainable 
Energy.  3/12/2025 2/15/2025 $565,676

6/28/2024

Foster Grandparent - Senior 
Tech Program 

CA Advanced Services Fund 
(CASF) Adoption Account - 
Digital Literacy

CA Public Utilities 
Commission 

$1,168,652

Funds will allow the Senior Tech Program to 
continue for two more years, serving approximately 
2,500 seniors. 10/7/2024 1/16/2025 $1,168,652

12/24/2024

Food Services - Food 
Distribution Program 

Bob CareBob's Discount 
Furniture 

Smart & Final Charitable 
Foundation 

$2,500

Funds will support the Food Distribution Program. 

N/A 1/7/2025 $3,500

10/21/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Project Hearth  U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
(HUD), Continuum of Care 
(CoC) $325,490

Funding will support tenant based rental 
assistance. 

10/7/2024 3/19/2025 $375,642

Wednesday, April 16, 2025

2025 AWARDED

Page 229 of 233



10/21/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

 Project Phoenix  U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
(HUD), Continuum of Care 
(CoC) $487,032

Funding will support tenant based master leasing. 

10/7/2024 3/19/2025 $565,578

10/21/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Project Rise Expansion  U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
(HUD), Continuum of Care 
(CoC) $682,100

Funding will support tenant based master leasing. 

10/7/2024 3/19/2025 $779,877

10/21/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

HERO Team 2 Expansion  U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
(HUD), Continuum of Care 
(CoC) $525,000

Funding will support Coordinated Entry and 
supportive services. 

10/7/2024 3/19/2025 $558,816

10/21/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Project Home  U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
(HUD), Continuum of Care 
(CoC) $490,290

Funding will support tenant based master leasing. 

10/7/2024 3/19/2025 $542,405

5/31/2024

Agency Wide - Navigation 
Center & Planning 

Brownfields Planning Grant 
Community Engagement

City of Fresno 

$29,000

Fresno EOC will conduct outreach on behalf of the 
City of Fresno to gain community and stakeholder 
support and input for addressing brownfields issues 
in SW Fresno. N/A 1/16/2025 $29,000

Total Amount Requested $8,313,186 Total Amount Awarded $6,887,424

2025 NOT AWARDED

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

2/21/2025

Energy Services Power Saver Rewards Grant 
Program 

CA Public Utilities 
Commission 

$75,000

The Power Saver Rewards Grant Program provides 
grants to CBO's to educate Californian's about the 
Power Saver Rewards program and motivate them 
to take action by reducing their energy use during a 
Flex Alert. The program enables utility customers to 
get a bill credit for reducing their energy use while a 
Flex Alert is in effect. 

N/A 4/1/2025

8/20/2024

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Eviction Protection Grant 
Program FR-6800-N-79

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development

$224,500

Fresno EOC is a community partner with CCLS to 
provide no cost legal assistance to low-income 
tenants at risk of or subject to eviction.

N/A 1/9/2025

11/8/2024

Health Services - Community 
Health Center

Ending California's Tobacco 
Epidemic In Every 
Community RFA 24-10095

California Department of 
Public Health

$900,000

Tobacco prevention for a period of 36 months to
accelerate momentum toward ending California’s 
tobacco epidemic through policy, system, and 
environmental change strategies by increasing 
community engagement within populations that 
have been disproportionately targeted by the 
tobacco industry. 11/4/2025 2/4/2025

Total Amount Requested $1,199,500.12

Page 230 of 233



IN PROGRESS GRANTS

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

4/17/2025

Local Conservation Corps Local Conservation Corps 
CalRecycle RCL 40 Grant 

CalRecycle $2,282,789 This grant continues CalRecycle’s efforts to include 
all 14 California Local Certified Community 
Conservation Corps in collection and education 
activities of four (4) material types: CRV Beverage 
Containers, Used Oil, Used Tires, and E-waste. 

4/16/2025 TBD 

5/1/2025

Food Services Chick-fil-A True Inspirations 
Awards 

Chick-fil-A

$200,000

Programs or projects focused on addressing 
hunger and food insecurity facing children and their 
families.

4/16/2025 TBD 

5/2/2025

Health Services - Community 
Health Center

PATH CITED Round 4 CA Department of Health 
Care Services (DHCS)

$1,852,741

The PATH CITED initiative provides funding to 
build the capacity and infrastructure of on the 
ground partners, including community based 
organizations, hospitals, county agencies, Tribes, 
and others, to successfully participate in Medi-Cal 
system. The initiative enables the transition, 
expansion, and development of Enhanced Care 
Management (ECM) and Community Supports 
capacity and infrastructure. 

TBD TBD 

5/30/2025

Food Services - Food 
Distribution Program 

Anthem 2025 Food Insecurity 
Grants

Anthem Blue Cross

$10,000

Funding can support current agency initiatives to 
combat food insecurity such as purchasing food, 
equipment to prepare food, capital costs, and 
staffing cost to prepare and deliver food. 4/16/2025 TBD 

8/18/2025

Advance Peace CalVIP - California Violence 
Intervention & Prevention 
Grant - Cohort 5 

California Board of State and 
Community Corrections

$2,500,000

CalVIP grants are used to support, expand and 
replicate evidence-based violence reduction 
initiatives. 5/14/2025 TBD 

Total Amount Requested $6,845,530

SUBMITTED GRANTS

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

4/9/2025

Sanctuary & Support 
Services  

Fresno County DSS (Human 
Tafficking Support Services)

Fresno County DSS

$750,000

Funding to provide supportive services and 
education of harm reduction tools to youth 
impacted by human trafficking, and youth at risk of 
human trafficking including victims of both sexual 
trafficking and/or labor trafficking.

4/16/2025 TBD 

3/15/2025

Food Services Charitable Grant Application 
for the Wipfli Foundation - 
2025 

Wipfli Foundation

$25,000

Funding supports social services and education 
initiatives in locations where Wipfli operates. 

4/16/2025 TBD 

Page 231 of 233



3/31/2025

Food Services Kaiser Permanente Food & 
Nutrition Security Grant 

Kaiser Permanente

$25,000

Funding to support strengthening current Food 
Distribution services. 

4/16/2025 TBD 

3/31/2025

Sanctuary & Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Fansler Foundation Fansler Foundation

$50,000

Deliverables directly benefit developmentally 
challenged or socioeconomically disadvantaged 
children that are infant through eighteen years of 
age in the Fresno, Kings, Tulare, Merced, Madera, 
or Mariposa Counties.

4/16/2025 TBD 

3/4/2025

Health Services - Community 
Health Center

California Responsibility 
Education Program (CA 
PREP) and I&E 

California Department of 
Public Health, Maternal, 
Child and Adolescent Health 
Division (CDPH/MCAH)

$1,875,000

CA PREP is intended to educate at-risk youth, 
ages 10 - 19 years and up to 21 years, for 
expecting or pregnant female youth in Fresno 
County on pregnancy prevention and sexually 
transmitted infections through replicating evidence-
based program models which have been proven to 
change sexual risk-taking behavior, including 
delaying sexual activity, and increasing 

  
3/12/2025 TBD 

3/3/2025

Training and Employment  Basic Needs and Income 
Creation - RFP 

Bank of America Charitable 
Foundation 

$40,000

Will provide funding for Internship Program for 
students ages 17 to 26 with a high school diploma 
or equivalent. 

N/A TBD 

2/28/2025

Health Services - Community 
Health Center

Enhanced Care Management 
(ECM) Provider Certification 
Applications

CalAIM - Anthem/CalViva 

TBD 

Enhanced Care Management (ECM) is a statewide 
Medi-Cal benefit that provides person-centered, 
community-based management to the highest need 
members. 

3/12/2025 TBD

2/18/2025

Agency Wide FUSD RFQ No. 25-02 
Services for Community 
Schools

Fresno Unified School 
District (FUSD) 

N/A 

The RFQ is to pre-qualify a pool of vendors under 
Fresno Unified for direct/indirect Student and 
Family Services and Professional Learning under 
four pillars: Integrated Student Supports, Expanded 
and Enriched Learning Opportunities, Family and 
Community Engagement, and Collaborative 
Leadership and Practices. 

N/A TBD 

1/27/2025

Sanctuary & Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Human Trafficking Victim 
Assistance Program 

Cal OES 

$566,666

The purpose of the program is to provide 
comprehensive safety and supportive services to 
all survivors of human trafficking by enhancing 
access to essential direct services. 1/27/2025 TBD 

1/24/2025

Sanctuary & Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Flexible Assistance for 
Survivors (FA) Pilot Grant 
Program 

Cal OES 

$250,000

Improve safety, healing, and financial stability for 
victim/survivors of crime and their family members 
through direct cash/financial assistance.

1/27/2025 TBD

1/1/2025

Agency Wide - Information 
Technology (IT) 

CASF Broadband Adoption 
Account Grant-Digital 
Literacy 

CA Public Utilities 
Commission 

$150,000

This grant will provide funding to provide Digital 
Literacy classes in rural communities, which 
include Mendota, Huron, Orange Cove, Sanger, 
San Joaquin and Parlier. 

1/27/2025 TBD 

Page 232 of 233



12/23/2024

Health Services-Community 
Health Clinic 

Community Supports 
Provider Certification Tool 
Application 

CalAIM + Healthnet + Anthem 

TBD 

Application to become a Healthnet Community 
Supports provider offering Medically Tailored Meals 
(MTM), Housing Tenancy and Sustaining Services, 
and Housing Transition Navigation Community 
Supports. 

2/18/2025 TBD 

11/4/2024

Health Services - Tobacco 
Education Program

Community Outreach, 
Engagement, Education 
and/or Climate Resilience 
Service 

City of Fresno 

$400,000

The city is interested in partnering with a diverse 
range of organizations on this project. The services 
to be performed by the subgrantee(s) include 
community outreach, engagement, education, and 
climate resilience activities designed to involve 
community members living and/or working in the 
project area. TBD TBD

10/2/2024

Health Services HRSA-25-085 New Access 
Points Department of Health 
and Human Services Health 
Resources and Services 
Administration 

US Department of Health and 
Human Services, Health 
Resources and Services 
Administration (HRSA) 

$650,000

To support new health center service delivery sites 
to expand affordable, accessible, and high-quality 
primary health care for underserved communities. 

8/5/2024 11/20/2024

6/3/2024

EOC Other ICARP Adaptation Planning 
Grant Program

County of Fresno

$50,000

Fresno EOC will be a County of Fresno sub-
awardee providing outreach and facilitating 
community input on climate resiliency needs and 
strategies.

N/A TBD

2/27/2024

Training and Employment - 
Valley Apprenticeship 
Connections (VAC)

Career Skills Training Department of Energy

$536,626

Funding for job training to gain industry-recognized 
certifications in energy efficiency sector. 

1/22/2024 5/20/2024

Total Amount Requested $5,368,292

LETTERS OF INTENT SUBMITTED

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

1/9/2025

Sanctuary & Support 
Services 

California Endowment Letter 
of Intent 

California Endowement 

TBD 

Funding will support case management, mental 
health services, and educational outreach for the 
LGBTQ+ Resource Center.

N/A TBD 

11/20/2024

Advance Peace CDC (RO1) Research Grants 
to Rigorously Evaluate 
Innovative and Promising 
Strategies to Prevent Firearm-
Related Violence and Injuries

CDC

$50,000

In partnership with MPHI and UC Berkley, funding 
will be used to demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
Advance Peace strategy, using a casual research 
design examining the relationship between stipend 
reinforcements and long term behavior changes. 

N/A TBD

7/15/2024

EOC Other BID OPPORTUNITY - 
Community Outreach and 
Education Services Master 
S i  A t (MSA)

State of California, 
Department of General 
Services Procurement 
Di i i  (DGS PD)

$0

CBO specific Master Service Agreements (MSAs) 
for Community Outreach and Education Services.

N/A TBD

Total Amount Requested $50,000

Page 233 of 233


	2. P&E Monthly Attendance Record
	PP&E Committee

	3. PP&E Committee Meeting Minutes 3.12.25
	4. Staff Report Calrecycle RCL 40 April 2025
	Per state statue, the CalRecycle grant is the program that enables youth serving programs to be considered an official “Corps” and provides funding for various LCC staff. The Buyback component helps provide funding for many corps needs, not usually in...
	The short- and long-term goals for this project include providing opportunities for local residents to help divert recyclable materials from local landfills, while also providing vocational training opportunities for young adults, ages 18-26.
	The grant application is due on April 17, 2025.

	5_1. Staff Report 2026-2027 Community Action Plan PPE
	5_2. Fresno EOC 2026-2027 CNA CAP - Draft 04-11-2025
	Introduction
	Purpose
	Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances and Certification
	State Assurances and Certification
	Compliance with CSBG Organizational Standards
	What’s New for 2026/2027?

	Checklist
	Cover Page
	Public Hearing(s)
	Part I: Community Needs Assessment Summary
	Narrative
	Results

	Part II: Community Action Plan
	Vision and Mission Statements
	Causes and Conditions of Poverty
	Tripartite Board of Directors
	Service Delivery System
	Linkages and Funding Coordination
	Monitoring
	ROMA Application
	Federal CSBG Programmatic Assurances
	State Assurances
	Organizational Standards

	Part III: Appendices
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G


	6. Staff Report (PPE) WIC FFY 26-28 Funding
	7. Staff Report (PP&E)_Grant Applications_less than 150k
	8. Staff Report (PP&E)_Grant Applications_less than 150k
	9. Staff Report (PPE)_Sanctuary and Support Services_Fresno County HT Support Services APR 2025
	10. Staff Report (PPE)_Sanctuary and Support Services_CVH HHIP Agreeement APR 2025
	11. Staff Report (PPE) Food Services Chick-fil-A True Inspirations Awards
	12_1. Staff Report TE FRWDB Monitoring
	On March 31, 2025, the FRWDB issued a final determination letter to Fresno EOC regarding Program Year (PY) 2024-2025 Urban East Youth Services, Agreement Number 310-301. This letter served to communicate that three of eight files submitted and reviewe...

	12_2. 03 31 25 FEOC Urban East Youth PM PY 24-25 Final Determination Letter
	13_1. Grant Tracker_Staff Report
	13_2. Grant Tracker_41625
	Grant Tracker 2025




